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The Majestic way
Majestic operates the largest wine warehouse
chain in Britain, specialising in the sale of wine by
the mixed case direct to the public.

Our differentiators
We differentiate ourself by the high quality of our
customer service and advice, the diversity and
quantity of stock available to purchase at each store,
our dedicated on-site customer parking, wines to
taste every day, the ability to order in store or via
our website and the availability of free delivery
throughout mainland UK.
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Rapport
Customers often regard us as their personal
wine merchant and build a good rapport
with "their" Majestic person.



Operational Highlights
On 6 March 2009 we acquired the fine wine specialist,
Lay & Wheeler. Integration is progressing well and
we are encouraged by the initial sales performance.
Internet sales achieved strong growth of 16% and
now represent 9.1% of UK retail sales.

Financial Highlights
Total sales up 2.4% to £201.8m (2008: 197.0m).
UK like for like sales for the ten weeks from 31 March
to 8 June 2009 were up 2.0%.
Total dividend of 9.8p (2008: 9.8p) per share.
Average bottle price of still wine purchased is now
£6.35 (2008: £5.98).
Average spend per transaction remains unchanged
at £133 (2008: £133).

Online Sales
Majestic.co.uk operates a model different to many
other "bricks and clicks" retailers as almost all our
online orders are handled by the customer’s local store.
This enables us to offer the convenience of ecommerce
coupled with unparalleled customer service delivered
by our friendly and knowledgeable people.

In the year to March 2009 over 130,000 orders were
processed online, generating sales of £18.5 million.

We continue to improve the user experience of our site
introducing enhanced product merchandising and
increasing the emphasis on interactivity. Customers are
now able to save lists of their favourite wines online as
well as publish their own reviews. We are growing the
level of qualitative content online through our blog,
which includes articles contributed by store staff,
as well as reaching out to customers through social
media services such as Twitter and Facebook.
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This year, I am reporting a decline in profit at Majestic. Conditions
in the economy have taken their toll, with the result that underlying
pre-tax profit has declined by 22.3% to £12.7m. In addition, we have
decided to write down the carrying value of our French business and
the resulting non-cash impairment charge of £5.3m has reduced
statutory profit before tax to £7.4m, a decline of 55.8% on last year.

Sales to private customers, which make up the core of our business,
have held up well. In contrast, trading with UK corporate customers
has been poor. Sales have also declined at our French business, which
has been hard hit by the strength of the Euro. This has discouraged
consumers from travelling to France.

Whilst short term performance has been affected by wider market
conditions, we are confident that the business remains well positioned
and that we will be able to capitalise on our underlying strengths as
the economic backdrop improves.

We believe that the acquisition of the fine wine specialist Lay &
Wheeler, which was completed just prior to the year end, will enhance
Majestic’s growing fine wine business. We are making good progress
with integration and early results are encouraging.

Dividend
We are recommending to shareholders a final dividend of 7.0p per share,
maintaining the total dividend for the year at 9.8p (2008: 9.8p).

People
In times like this, maintaining differentiation is essential and in the case of
Majestic this is centred on the expertise of our people and the great service
they deliver. I believe that this has played a key role in retaining our
customers and I thank all of our colleagues for their vital contribution.

Current trading
I am pleased to report a more encouraging start to the new financial year,
with UK like for like sales for the ten weeks from 31 March to 8 June 2009
up 2.0%.

Simon Burke
Chairman
15 June 2009

Chairman’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer’s
Review of Operations
Majestic has a clearly differentiated retailing model with a focus on excellent
value across the price range, an interesting product offering and above all,
a compelling customer service proposition.

Total Group sales for the year were up 2.4% to £201.8m (2008:
£197.0m), with UK like for like store sales declining 2.7%.

Whilst we experienced very challenging trading conditions in the
second half of the financial year, we have been encouraged that sales
to our private customers have held up well. We have also been pleased
with our sales to restaurant customers.

In contrast, sales to corporate customers particularly of Champagne,
have been in decline. Many of our corporate customers purchase wine
for entertaining, events and gifting and in the current climate they
have reduced spend on these activities.

The resilience of our core consumer business is encouraging as it
comes in the face of particularly fierce competition in the market.
Our market share has held steady and we are confident that Majestic
is well positioned to benefit from any upturn in the economy.

Product
During the year there has been considerable pressure on the price of
wine from France and Italy, exacerbated by the appreciation of the Euro.
In response we have increased our range of wines from the New World
and have seen strong sales growth from New Zealand, South Africa and
Argentina. We have also seen good growth in wines from Spain where
producers continue to be very competitive.

Our buying team have proved very successful in seeking out interesting,
well priced wines ensuring our customers have the best possible selection
available to them. We believe that the combination of imaginative buying,
knowledgeable staff and our in-store tasting, which is available in all stores
seven days a week, enables Majestic to maintain a strong and
differentiated offering.

Marketing
We have 418,000 active customers on our database who have made a
purchase in the last year. The average bottle price of still wine purchased
at Majestic has risen to £6.35 up from £5.98 last year, with the average
spend per transaction unchanged from last year at £133.

We have increased our frequency of communication with customers using
a combination of promotional flyers and full price lists. We have deployed
more short term offers than previously and this has allowed us to be very
responsive as parcels of interesting wine become available.

We understand that we need to work hard to keep our customers loyal
to us and have developed a number of initiatives to do so. The most
important of these is our "Wine Uncorked" course. We identified that
there are many customers who are interested in learning more about
wine and consequently we designed an educational event to further their
knowledge. It is free to attend, held in-store and run by specially trained
store managers. It takes customers through how wine is made in the
vineyard and the winery, wine varietals, tasting technique as well as food
and wine matching. To date we have run events for over 1,000 customers.
We have also developed a version of the course which we offer exclusively
to our restaurant customers and we help to train staff in their own
establishments. In addition to these events, we held 170 customer tasting
evenings in our stores last year.

Ecommerce
The increase in sales through our website has been particularly
encouraging. Over the year we achieved growth of 16% in ecommerce
sales which represented 9.1% of total UK retail sales, up from 7.9% in the
previous year.

We continue to invest in improving the functionality of the website
and have introduced "favourites" and user reviews as well as improved
merchandising display. Increasingly we are offering parcels of wine, which
would be too small to be distributed to all stores, as exclusives to our web
customers. We now have 210,000 email addresses of Majestic customers
allowing us to communicate about such parcels quickly and cost
effectively.

Lay & Wheeler
In March 2009 we completed the acquisition of Lay & Wheeler, a fine wine
specialist with particular authority in wines from Bordeaux and Burgundy.

Lay & Wheeler has been synonymous with high quality wines for over
150 years and has considerable expertise in the fields of fine wine
sourcing, en primeur sales, portfolio management, cellarage and broking.

Lay & Wheeler offers the storage of customers’ wines under bond at its
own dedicated facility in Burton upon Trent. Wines are kept in optimum
storage conditions with duty and VAT being deferred until the wines are
removed from bond.

Over recent years we have successfully introduced fine wine display
areas into over a third of Majestic stores. We have achieved strong
growth in sales of wines, priced at £20 and above that are ready to drink.
The acquisition of Lay & Wheeler allows us to offer our customers a
complete fine wine service from the vineyard through to storage, cellar
management and then secure delivery to their home, or sale within the
wider fine wine market.

Given the clear and continuing appetite of our customers for fine wine,
Lay & Wheeler is a very good fit with Majestic. Integration into the
Majestic Group is progressing well and the sales performance since
acquisition has been encouraging.

Wine and Beer World
During the second half of the financial year we experienced a significant
decline in sales at our three stores in northern France, largely attributable
to the appreciation of the Euro. This has discouraged customers from
travelling to France. In response to this we have re-structured the business,
closing our distribution depot in Calais and lowering staff numbers.

We believe that the significant differential in duty rates between the UK
and France provides the business with a long term future. We will therefore
continue to trade in France giving customers the opportunity to take
advantage of these savings.

In light of the trading performance and our belief that sales will not
improve in the short term, we have decided to write down the carrying
value of the goodwill relating to this business by £5.3m.



Average bottle price
The average bottle price
of still wine purchased at
Majestic has increased to
£5.98 from £5.75.
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New stores
We opened four new stores during the year in Hereford, Leatherhead,
Finchley and Summertown in north Oxford. In addition we re-sited our
stores in Kingston, Worcester and Cowley Road in south Oxford.

Since the year end we have opened in Southend and Shrewsbury and
are pleased with their early trading. We will also open a store on Leith
Walk in Edinburgh during June 2009. This will bring the total Majestic
estate to 150 stores trading in the UK. We have identified a further 100
locations where we believe Majestic would trade successfully and
currently plan to open a further five stores during the year.

Customer service
Alongside the quality and value of our product range it is the strength of
our customer service which most differentiates us from our competitors.
We believe that to maintain a culture of strong customer service we need
to continue to recruit and retain high quality staff at graduate level. We
invest in a comprehensive training programme focusing on customer
service, management and product knowledge. This training programme
is widely acknowledged to be the best in the wine industry.

All our retail staff take the Wine and Spirit Education Trust’s (WSET)
Advanced Certificate after around six months. On completion the most
able staff are offered sponsorship to study for the WSET Diploma over a
two year period. At present, 148 staff either hold or are studying for their
Diploma and many of these are involved in facilitating our staff training
programme. We are particularly proud that seven of our staff achieved
WSET "Awards of Excellence" in January 2009.

Awards
We were delighted to be recognised as the "High Street Chain of the
Year" at the International Wine Challenge Awards in 2008. Decanter
magazine also awarded us "Specialist Wine Chain of the Year" in 2008
and we were pleased that readers of Decanter magazine chose Majestic
as their "High Street Chain of the Year".

Future prospects
Majestic has a clearly differentiated retailing model with a focus on
excellent value across the price range, an interesting product offering
and above all, a compelling customer service proposition. Although the
UK economic environment remains challenging we believe that Majestic
is well positioned to take advantage of any upturn.

Steve Lewis
Chief Executive
15 June 2009
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At Majestic we love wine
It’s what we do, and it’s all we do
We are excited by our new initiative,
Majestic Knowledge, where we aim to increase
our customers’ understanding of wine through
"Wine Uncorked" and "Confidence in Wine".

From grape to glass
We understand that many of our customers are extremely keen to learn more about wine,
from viniculture to vinification and how to taste and evaluate wine. As we improve our
customers’ knowledge, they will become more likely to explore a wider variety of wines.

A bespoke experience
We offer two distinct courses:

"Wine Uncorked" – A relaxed two hour introduction and tasting session for our private
customers. They taste seven wines, including a Champagne, with each wine illustrating a
learning objective. At the end some basic principles of food and wine matching are introduced.

"Confidence in Wine" – An on-trade variant of Wine Uncorked. Our business development
managers use this session to train the staff of our restaurant accounts to improve their sales
skills and explore food and wine matching.

Driving growth
"Knowledge" initiatives showcase the enthusiasm, passion and expertise of Majestic staff,
which will engender greater loyalty from our existing customer base. We will also reach out
to a wider audience of potential new customers who will have learned of the events through
word of mouth amongst their friends and peers.
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"I just wanted to thank Majestic for
such an interesting evening yesterday.
It was delivered in the usual Majestic way
– informative and relaxed which made
it easy to understand. A real eye-opener,
especially the food and wine matching
part!" K L, Wimbledon.

Number of customers
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Trading
Sales for the Group at £201.8m were up 2.4% on the previous year (2008: £197.0m) giving
underlying profit before tax of £12.7m, a decline of 22.3% (2008: £16.4m). The Group’s underlying
margin before tax was 6.3% (2008: 8.3%). This performance is analysed in the Review of
Operations.

Exceptional items
The exceptional non-cash charge recorded in the year of £5.3m relates to the write down of the
carrying value of our French retailing business, Wine and Beer World. In the prior year, profits of
£0.3m were recorded on the disposal of UK property assets held for sale.

Accounting standards require asset impairment tests to be performed either annually or when a
trigger event has been identified. As a result of the extremely challenging trading environment
affecting our French business, the carrying value of Wine and Beer World’s assets held on the
Group’s balance sheet has been written down by £5.3m to £3.0m.

Taxation
The effective rate of tax in 2009 on underlying profit was 32.4% (2008: 32.7%). This is higher than
the corporation tax rate of 28.0% due to the excess of depreciation over tax writing down
allowances and a reduction in deferred tax assets that relate to employee share options. Including
the impact of the exceptional impairment charge, which is not eligible for tax deduction, the
effective rate of tax was 55.8% (2008: 32.6%).

Earnings per share
Underlying basic earnings per share for the year at 14.0p was down 20.0% on the previous year
(2008: 17.5p). Underlying diluted earnings per share for the period of 14.0p was down 19.5% on
the previous year (2008: 17.4p).

Basic earnings per share for the year at 5.3p was down 70.4% on the previous year (2008: 17.9p).
Diluted earnings per share for the year at 5.3p was down 70.1% on the previous year (2008: 17.7p).

Dividend
The Board is recommending a final dividend for 2009 of 7.0 pence per share. This will bring the
total dividend for the financial year to 9.8 pence per share, in line with the dividend paid for the
prior year. The total dividend is 1.4 times covered by underlying profit after tax (2008: 1.8 times).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting on 7 August 2009, the final
dividend will be payable on 14 August 2009, to shareholders on the register on 17 July 2009.

Financial Review
On 6 March 2009 the Group purchased Lay & Wheeler
for a consideration of £5.5m including costs of £0.3m
and acquired net debt of £1.0m.
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Cash flow and net debt
Cash flows from operating activities were £15.5m compared with £22.1m in the previous year.
The reduction was attributable to the lower level of underlying profit before tax.

On 6 March 2009 the Group purchased Lay & Wheeler for a consideration of £5.5m including costs
of £0.3m and acquired net debt of £1.0m.

Net capital expenditure, excluding £5.5m for the acquisition of Lay & Wheeler, was £7.1m, down
from £8.4m in 2008 reflecting a reduction in new stores opened during the year.

Other significant cash flows in the year included dividends paid to shareholders of £6.0m
(2008: £5.7m), tax payments of £4.3m (2008: £4.2m) and share buybacks of £0.8m (2008: £9.5m).

The Group’s net debt at 30 March 2009 was £8.3m, an increase of £8.2m over the year, mainly due
to a new committed three-year term loan of £7.0m arranged with Barclays Bank PLC to finance the
acquisition of Lay & Wheeler.

Balance sheet
Reported net assets of £47.6m were £1.8m lower than last year. The reduction in net assets was
driven by the £5.3m impairment write-down.

Liquidity and funding
The Group maintains liquidity by arranging funding ahead of requirements. At 30 March 2009
the Group had undrawn short term borrowing facilities of £10m which are renewable in March
2010. These facilities are in place to allow the Group to finance its seasonal working capital
requirements and new store opening programme.

Nigel Alldritt
Finance Director
15 June 2009

Awards
We were delighted to be recognised as the High
Street Chain of the Year at the International Wine
Challenge Awards in 2008.

Decanter Magazine named us Specialist Wine Chain
of the Year 2008. Mentioning "a strong, keenly
priced range" and "knowledgeable staff, and the
ability to taste with no pressure to buy".

We also won Decanter Readers’ Awards High Street
Wine Chain of the Year Winner. Among the
compliments were an "excellent and varied range",
"helpful staff, and top-notch service" and a website
which is "close to perfection".
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Living and breathing wine
Our buyers are acknowledged as being amongst
the best in the industry. They are responsible for
planning our range, sourcing new and interesting
wines from producers all over the world. The range
is constantly evolving as they search out individual
parcels of wine which offer customers both
additional variety and value.

People
At Majestic we offer a huge amount of early responsibility and autonomy and work hard to
develop our people. We provide a comprehensive training programme and sponsor our people
through the Wine and Spirit Education Trust’s Advanced Certificate. We encourage them to
go further still and many study the two-year WSET Diploma course. Our in-house training
programme, which is highly regarded, covers wine knowledge, operational management and
customer care.

International Wine Challenge
The International Wine Challenge is the world’s largest wine competition, where thousands of
wines from all over the world are judged, as well as those selling them. We were delighted to be
named as the High Street Merchant of the year for the second year running. We were awarded
these on the strength of our "Competitive prices, excellent customer service, impressive range".

Average bottle price
The average bottle price
of still wine purchased at
Majestic has increased to
£6.35 from £5.98.
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Matt Pym, Buyer
As a buyer for Majestic, I believe my role is to deliver our
customers the best wines at the best prices. To achieve this
I need to continually be ahead of the market, to lead and set
trends, rather than follow them. Our core strength has always
been the classic regions of Europe where we continue to offer
a diverse range focussed on quality. We have also been at the
forefront of the surge of wine sales from the New World,
where popular regions such as Marlborough in New Zealand
have become "classic" in their own right. To have been deeply
involved in this challenging period for the wine industry has
been immensely satisfying and exciting for me.



Simon Burke
Aged 50, is non-executive Chairman and was
appointed to the Board in 2000. He is Chairman of
Irish supermarket chain Superquinn.

Steve Lewis
Aged 45, was appointed Chief Executive on 8 August
2008. He was appointed to the Board in 1998.

Nigel Alldritt
Aged 45, is Finance Director and Company Secretary
and was appointed to the Board in 2002. He is a
Chartered Management Accountant and responsible
for the finance and IT functions.

Justin Apthorp
Aged 47, is Buying Director. He was appointed to
the Board in January 2006.

Paul Dermody
Aged 63, is a non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board in 2003. He is the former
Chief Executive of De Vere Group Plc. He is a non-
executive Director of AGA Rangemaster Group Plc.
He chairs the audit committee.

Helen Keays
Aged 45, is a non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board in November 2005.
She is a management consultant and trustee of
The Shakespeare Birthplace Trust. She chairs the
remuneration committee.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 March 2009

The Directors present their report and Group financial statements for the year ended 30 March 2009.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the business is the retailing of wines, beers and spirits.

Results and review of the business
The Group Income Statement is set out on page 18.

The Directors’ Report should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s Statement on page 3, the Review of Operations on pages 4 to 5 and the Financial
Review on pages 8 to 9 which include information about the Group’s business performance during the year and indication of future prospects.

Dividends
The Directors propose that a final dividend of 7.0p net per Ordinary Share be paid which, together with an interim dividend of 2.8p paid on 9 January 2009,
makes a total of 9.8p (2008: 9.8p) per share for the year. The final dividend amounting to £4,302,000, if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid
on 14 August 2009 to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members at the close of business on 17 July 2009.

Directors
The Directors who served during the year and their interests in the Ordinary Share capital of the Company were:

Number of Ordinary Shares

2009 2008

Tim How (note 1) 237,493 237,493
Steve Lewis 53,805 53,805
Nigel Alldritt 60,120 60,120
Justin Apthorp (note 2) 762,873 762,873
Simon Burke 8,000 8,000
Paul Dermody (note 3) 7,000 7,000
Helen Keays – –

Notes:
1) 91,505 of the Ordinary Shares that Tim How has an interest in are held in his own name, 125,988 are held by his wife and 20,000 are held jointly.

2) 38,873 of the Ordinary Shares that Justin Apthorp has an interest in are held in his own name, 24,000 are held by his wife and 700,000 are held by Meespiersen.

3) 2,000 of the Ordinary Shares that Paul Dermody has an interest in are held in his own name and 5,000 are held by his wife.

Simon Burke, Paul Dermody and Helen Keays are non-executive Directors.

Tim How retired from the Board on 8 August 2008. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Helen Keays and Justin Apthorp retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Group has provided to all of its Directors limited indemnities in respect of costs of defending claims against them and third party liabilities.

Share capital
The authorised and called-up share capital of the Company, together with details of the Ordinary Shares allotted and purchased during the year are shown in
note 24 of the financial statements. The Company is authorised by the shareholders to purchase, in the market, the Company’s own shares up to a maximum
aggregate nominal value equal to £462,833 representing approximately 10% of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company. This
authority is renewable annually and approval will be sought at the Annual General Meeting to renew the authority for a further year. It is the Company’s present
intention to cancel any shares it buys back, rather than hold them in treasury.

Major shareholders
At 8 June 2009 the following interests of shareholders in excess of 3%, have been notified to the Company.

Number of Ordinary Shares as %
Ordinary Shares held of issued share capital

P&L Trust Company Limited 8,000,000 13.02
Fidelity Investments 4,500,691 7.32
AXA Framlington Investment Managers 3,088,821 5.03
Aviva Investors 2,334,443 3.80
Hawesko Holding 2,083,047 3.39



Majestic Wine PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
14

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Corporate Governance
The Board has established a remuneration committee and an audit committee.

Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee consists of the Chairman and the other two non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Helen Keays and meets as required during the
year. The committee determines the remuneration and benefits of the executive Directors. The executive Directors have rolling one year contracts subject to one
year’s notice on either side. The remuneration of non-executive Directors is determined by the Board within the limits set by the Company’s Articles of
Association. They have letters of engagement with the Company and their appointments are terminable on three months written notice on either side.

Share option schemes
The Group operates executive share option schemes (one of which is a HM Revenue & Customs Company Approved Share Option Scheme and one which is
unapproved for tax purposes) in which the Directors and employees participate. The Group also operates a savings related share option scheme that is available to
all Group employees, and conforms to HM Revenue & Customs rules. The committee determines the allocation of options for the share schemes and the awards
made for the co-investment plan and the deferred bonus scheme.

The executive Directors’ participation in the Group’s executive share option schemes is limited such that they are eligible to receive options over shares in value up
to a maximum of two times gross salary at the date of grant which will only become exercisable on the achievement of performance criteria determined by the
remuneration committee.

Co-investment plan
The Company operates an annual cash bonus and co-investment plan for the executive Directors. The performance criteria set by the remuneration committee for
the annual bonus for the year ended 30 March 2009 were not achieved. The remuneration committee in order to incentivise and align the interests of the senior
management with the strategic objectives of the Group has decided to invite the executive Directors to invest in the co-investment plan for 2009.

Share options granted to the executive Directors under the co-investment plan in July 2005 lapsed in July 2008 as the performance criteria set were not met.

The Directors’ interests in share options are as follows:

Options Market Date from
Options at granted/ Options Options Exercise price at date which Expiry Scheme
31.03.08 (lapsed) exercised at 30.03.09 price of exercise exercisable date name

Tim How 94,200 – (94,200) – £1.145 £2.11 09.07.05 08.07.09 Unapproved
11,380 (11,380) – – £2.635 – 25.07.08 25.07.15 Approved
38,620 (38,620) – – £2.635 – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Unapproved
73,275 (73,275) – – nil – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Co-investment
1,982 (1,982) – – £2.86 – 01.03.10 31.08.10 SAYE
63,543 (63,543) – – nil – 19.07.10 18.07.17 Co-investment

Nigel Alldritt 35,000 – – 35,000 £1.145 – 09.07.05 08.07.09 Unapproved
11,380 – – 11,380 £2.635 – 25.07.08 25.07.15 Approved
38,620 – – 38,620 £2.635 – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Unapproved
34,482 (34,482) – – nil – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Co-investment
4,192 – – 4,192 £2.23 – 01.03.09 31.08.09 SAYE
27,729 – – 27,729 nil – 19.07.10 18.07.17 Co-investment

– 25,000 – 25,000 £1.68 – 17.07.11 17.07.18 Unapproved

Steve Lewis 78,750 – – 78,750 £1.145 – 09.07.05 08.07.09 Unapproved
9,970 – – 9,970 £2.635 – 25.07.08 25.07.15 Approved
40,030 – – 40,030 £2.635 – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Unapproved
37,930 (37,930) – – nil – 25.07.08 24.07.15 Co-investment
1,321 – – 1,321 £2.86 – 01.03.10 31.08.10 SAYE
34,660 – – 34,660 nil – 19.07.10 18.07.17 Co-investment

– 2,200 – 2,200 £1.68 – 17.07.11 17.07.18 Approved
– 22,800 – 22,800 £1.68 – 17.07.11 17.07.18 Unapproved

Justin Apthorp 10,235 – – 10,235 £2.93 – 10.07.09 10.07.16 Approved
39,765 – – 39,765 £2.93 – 10.07.09 09.07.16 Unapproved
21,952 – – 21,952 nil – 19.07.10 18.07.17 Co-investment

– 25,000 – 25,000 £1.68 – 17.07.11 17.07.18 Unapproved

The market value of the Company’s shares at 30 March 2009 was 156.0p. The highest and lowest prices during the year were 239.25p and 108.75p respectively.

Deferred bonus scheme
The Group operates a deferred bonus scheme for senior managers, which excludes the executive Directors.

It involves the award of bonus shares to participants subject to meeting performance criteria that are set annually by the remuneration committee. Any bonus
shares awarded in this manner are held on behalf of participants by the trustee of the Company’s employee share ownership trust for a two year deferral period.
At the end of that period, participants have a right to receive loyalty shares of equivalent number provided that they are still in employment.

The performance criteria set by the remuneration committee for the financial year ended 30 March 2009 were not met and therefore participants are not entitled
to an award of bonus shares.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Audit committee
The audit committee consists of the Chairman and the other two non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Paul Dermody. The other Directors attend by invitation.
It meets as required during the year, at least once with the Group’s external auditors. Its role is to review the interim and final financial statements for approval by
the Board, to ensure that appropriate financial and operating controls are functioning properly and to provide the forum through which the Group’s external
auditors report to the Board.

Internal controls
The Directors are responsible for the Group’s internal controls, and have established a framework intended to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material financial misstatement or loss.

Financial reporting
The Group’s trading performance is monitored on an ongoing basis. An annual budget is prepared and specific objectives and targets are set. The budget is
reviewed and approved by the Board. The key trading aspects of the business are monitored weekly and internal management and financial accounts are
prepared quarterly. The results are compared to budget and prior year performance.

Store control environment
Operating procedures for control of store operations are clearly documented and set out in operation manuals. Senior operational managers are responsible for
the implementation of these procedures and compliance is monitored.

Risk management
The risks facing the business are assessed on an ongoing basis. The executive Directors have direct responsibility for a number of key risk areas. They evaluate the
likelihood and potential impact of risks and ensure appropriate action is taken to mitigate them. The key risks and mitigating factors are set out below.

– The retail industry is very competitive. The Group competes with a number of retailers of varying size on areas including price, range, quality and service. Failure
to compete effectively could have an adverse impact on the financial results. Apart from regularly monitoring performance against competitors in these areas
the Group mitigates its exposure by ensuring that the business is differentiated from the competition by the diversity and quantity of stock at each location,
provision of dedicated car parking and wine expertise.

– The Group recognises that it is essential to its success to attract, retain and motivate staff at all levels in the organisation. The Group considers its employment
policies regularly and provides a comprehensive package of salary and benefits, including bonuses and participation in the Group’s share option schemes. Great
emphasis is placed on training in order to help people achieve their full potential.

– The business is dependent on information technology systems and a significant failure may impact the Group’s ability to trade. The Group has extensive controls
in place to ensure the integrity and reliability of its systems. Recovery plans are in place to ensure that any disruption from a failure can be kept to a minimum
and they are regularly tested.

– As a drinks retailer the Group operates in a market that is regulated most notably by way of licences to sell alcohol. The Group monitors compliance with
licensing requirements ensuring that all relevant staff hold the appropriate qualifications. Changes in the regulatory environment could occur at any time and
may have a detrimental effect on the business.

– The Group imports product direct from suppliers located abroad and is therefore exposed to risk from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Forward
currency contracts are purchased to mitigate foreign currency exposures.

Financial instruments
The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed in note 29 to the financial statements.

Charitable and political donations
Charitable donations made in the year amounted to £41,000. The largest beneficiaries were Comic Relief Wine Relief at £20,000 and the Alzheimer’s Society at
£18,000. The Group made no political donations during the year.

Key Performance Indicators
The Group monitors a number of performance indicators both financial and non-financial.

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 31.03.08

Total % increase in Group turnover (%) 2.4% 3.1%
UK retail like for like sales (decrease)/increase (%) (2.7)% 2.4%
Underlying profit before tax £m* £12.7m £16.4m
Underlying profit before tax as a % of total turnover (%)* 6.3% 8.3%
Number of stores trading in the UK 147 144
Number of active customers 418,000 410,000
Average transaction value (£) £133 £133

*Underlying profit before tax represents profit before tax and exceptional items as disclosed in the Group Income Statement.

These indicators are discussed in the Chairman’s Statement, the Review of Operations and the Financial Review.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

The Directors are required to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial position of the Group and
Company and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

– select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently;
– present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
– provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular

transactions, other events and conditions on the Group’s and Company’s financial position and financial performance; and
– state that the Group and Company have complied with IFRS, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and
Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to Auditors
The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ Report are listed on page 12. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors
and of the Company’s Auditors each of these Directors confirms that:
– to the best of each Director’s knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the Company’s Auditors are

unaware; and
– each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and to establish that the

Company’s Auditors are aware of that information.

Employees
The Directors recognise the value of involving employees in the business and ensure that matters of concern to them, including the Group’s aims and objectives
are communicated in an open and regular manner. Employees are kept informed of the Group’s performance and activities by regular briefings. Directors and
senior managers visit stores frequently to brief staff and discuss matters of concern or interest. The Group’s senior staff participate in the Group’s share option
schemes, and the deferred bonus scheme. Recruitment and training development policies give equal opportunity to all employees regardless of age, sex, colour,
race, religion or ethnic origin. The Group’s policy is to recruit disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill. The Group uses its best endeavours to
continue to employ persons who become disabled during their employment. Training programmes are held for all levels of staff. These are aimed at increasing
skills and contribution with particular emphasis placed on product knowledge and customer service skills.

Payment of suppliers
The Group does not follow any formal code of practice for payment of its suppliers. The Group’s current policy concerning the payment of the majority of its
trade and other payables is to:

(a) agree the terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of business;
(b) ensure that those suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the relevant terms on purchase orders; and
(c) pay in accordance with the terms agreed.

The average credit period taken during the year by the Group was 77 days (2008: 83 days). The Company has no trade payables.

Going concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the Financial Review.
The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position, and borrowing facilities are also described in that review. In addition note 29 to the financial
statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its exposure to credit and liquidity risk. The Board are currently of the opinion that the Group’s forecasts and projections,
taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group is able to operate within its current borrowing facilities and comply
with its banking covenants. At the balance sheet date the Group had net current liabilities of £3,096,000. In common with many other retailers the Group is able
to operate at certain times of the year with net current liabilities without impacting its ability to operate within its current banking facilities. The Board is satisfied
that the Group has adequate financial resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future and is financially sound. For this reason, the going concern basis
is considered appropriate for the preparation of financial statements.

Auditor
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors of the Company will be put to the Annual General Meeting. The Directors will also be given the authority to
fix the Auditor’s remuneration.

Articles of Association
A resolution to adopt new articles of association will be put to the Annual General Meeting. The new articles of association (the "New Articles") will be adopted
in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association in order to take account of changes in English company law brought about by the
Companies Act 2006. Further details relating to these changes are set out in the explanatory notes to the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting to be held on 7 August 2009.

By Order of the Board

Nigel Alldritt ACMA
Secretary

Majestic House
Otterspool Way
Watford WD25 8WW

15 June 2009

Registered in England Wales
No. 2281640
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Audit Report
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Majestic Wine PLC

We have audited the Group and parent company (the “Company”) financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Majestic Wine PLC for the year ended
30 March 2009 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Company Cash Flow Statements, the
Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 30. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the
financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Chairman’s statement, Review of
Operations and Financial Review that is cross referred from the review of the business section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other transactions are not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. The other information
comprises only the Directors’ Report, the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations and Financial Review. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group’s and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
– the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
30 March 2009 and of its profit for the year then ended;

– the Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 March 2009;

– the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985; and
– the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered auditor
Luton

15 June 2009
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Group Income Statement
For the year ended 30 March 2009

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 31.03.08

Note £000 £000

Revenue 201,794 197,026
Cost of sales (160,148) (155,018)

Gross profit 41,646 42,008
Distribution costs (18,398) (16,336)
Administrative costs (16,337) (10,044)
Other operating income 631 535

Operating profit 6 7,542 16,163
Profit on disposal of property – 341

Profit before finance costs and taxation 7,542 16,504
Finance revenue 8 55 259
Finance costs 8 (218) (61)

Profit before taxation 7,379 16,702

Analysed as:
Underlying profit before tax 12,710 16,361
Exceptional items:
Goodwill impairment included in administrative costs 9 (5,331) –
Profit on disposal of property 9 – 341

7,379 16,702

UK income tax 10 (3,973) (4,977)
Overseas income tax 10 (144) (471)

Profit for the year 3,262 11,254

Earnings per share
Basic 11 5.3p 17.9p
Diluted 11 5.3p 17.7p
Underlying basic 11 14.0p 17.5p
Underlying diluted 11 14.0p 17.4p

Total dividend per share for the year 12 9.8p 9.8p
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
As at 30 March 2009

Group Group Company Company
30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Non current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 13 9,129 7,790 – –
Property, plant and equipment 14 47,978 42,759 – –
Prepaid operating lease costs 15 1,583 1,528 – –
Deferred tax assets 10 298 452 – –
Investments in subsidiaries 16 – – 7,982 12,021

58,988 52,529 7,982 12,021
Current assets
Inventories 18 37,752 34,601 – –
Trade and other receivables 19 11,531 6,973 17,294 15,788
Financial instruments at fair value 29 834 307 – –
Cash and cash equivalents 29 2,572 2,626 – –

52,689 44,507 17,294 15,788

Total assets 111,677 97,036 25,276 27,809

Current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 20 (49,157) (41,176) – –
Term loan 21 (669) – – –
Bank overdraft 21 (3,950) (2,735) – –
Provisions 22 (121) (213) – –
Deferred lease inducements 23 (109) (94) – –
Financial instruments at fair value 29 – (10) – –
Current tax liabilities (1,779) (2,195) – –

(55,785) (46,423) – –
Non current liabilities
Amounts due to Group undertakings 20 – – (2,000) (2,000)
Term loan 21 (6,245) – – –
Provisions 22 – (19) – –
Deferred lease inducements 23 (769) (749) – –
Deferred tax liabilities 10 (1,262) (426) – –

Total liabilities (64,061) (47,617) (2,000) (2,000)

Net assets 47,616 49,419 23,276 25,809

Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 24 4,609 4,628 4,609 4,628
Share premium account 24 10,518 10,359 10,518 10,359
Capital reserve – own shares 24 (103) (105) – –
Capital redemption reserve 24 363 333 363 333
Currency translation reserve 24 2,623 1,217 – –
Retained earnings 29,606 32,987 7,786 10,489

Equity shareholders’ funds 47,616 49,419 23,276 25,809

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 15 June 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Simon Burke
Chairman
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Group Group Company Company
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/(utilised) by operations 28a 15,493 22,086 (1,506) 5,598
UK income tax paid (3,918) (3,622) – –
Overseas income tax paid (369) (449) – –

Net cash generated/(utilised) by operating activities 11,206 18,015 (1,506) 5,598

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 55 265 – –
Dividends received – – 8,174 8,726
UK income tax paid (34) (91) – –
Overseas income tax paid (11) (41) – –
Purchase of non current assets (7,152) (10,622) – –
Acquisition of subsidiaries including cash and cash equivalents acquired (5,538) – – –
Receipts from sales of non current assets 78 58 – –
Receipts from sales of non current assets held for sale – 2,190 – –

Net cash (utilised)/generated by investing activities (12,602) (8,241) 8,174 8,726

Cash (outflow)/inflow before financing (1,396) 9,774 6,668 14,324

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (288) (53) – –
Issue of Ordinary Share capital 170 674 170 674
New term loan 7,000 – – –
Arrangement fee on term loan (88) – – –
Receipt for shares issued to ESOT – – – 200
Shares re-purchased (828) (9,496) (828) (9,496)
Equity dividends paid (6,010) (5,702) (6,010) (5,702)

Net cash used by financing activities (44) (14,577) (6,668) (14,324)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,440) (4,803) – –
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (109) 4,484 – –
Effect of foreign exchange differences 171 210 – –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 28b (1,378) (109) – –
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 March 2009

Share Capital reserve Capital Currency Total
Share premium own shares redemption translation Retained shareholders’
capital account held in ESOT reserve reserve earnings funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Group
At 2 April 2007 4,803 9,518 (120) 125 (119) 37,118 51,325
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments – – – – 1,336 – 1,336

Tax debit on employee share options – – – – – (470) (470)

Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity – – – – 1,336 (470) 866

Profit for the year – – – – – 11,254 11,254

Total income and expense for the year – – – – 1,336 10,784 12,120
Share issue 29 645 – – – – 674
ESOT share issue 4 196 (100) – – (100) –
Shares vesting under deferred bonus scheme – – 115 – – (115) –
Transfer to shareholders’ funds – employee costs
expected to be satisfied in shares – – – – – 498 498

Purchase and cancellation of share capital (208) – – 208 – (9,496) (9,496)
Equity dividends paid – – – – – (5,702) (5,702)

At 31 March 2008 4,628 10,359 (105) 333 1,217 32,987 49,419
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments – – – – 1,406 – 1,406

Tax debit on employee share options – – – – – (69) (69)

Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity – – – – 1,406 (69) 1,337

Profit for the year – – – – – 3,262 3,262

Total income and expense for the year – – – – 1,406 3,193 4,599
Share issue 11 159 – – – – 170
Shares vesting under deferred bonus scheme – – 2 – – (2) –
Transfer to shareholders’ funds – employee costs
expected to be satisfied in shares – – – – – 266 266

Purchase and cancellation of share capital (30) – – 30 – (828) (828)
Equity dividends paid – – – – – (6,010) (6,010)

At 30 March 2009 4,609 10,518 (103) 363 2,623 29,606 47,616

Company
At 2 April 2007 4,803 9,518 – 125 – 16,961 31,407
Profit for the year – – – – – 8,726 8,726

Total income and expense for the year – – – – – 8,726 8,726
Share issue 29 645 – – – – 674
ESOT share issue 4 196 – – – – 200
Purchase and cancellation of share capital (208) – – 208 – (9,496) (9,496)
Equity dividends paid – – – – – (5,702) (5,702)

At 31 March 2008 4,628 10,359 – 333 – 10,489 25,809
Profit for the year – – – – – 4,135 4,135

Total income and expense for the year – – – – – 4,135 4,135
Share issue 11 159 – – – – 170
Purchase and cancellation of share capital (30) – – 30 – (828) (828)
Equity dividends paid – – – – – (6,010) (6,010)

At 30 March 2009 4,609 10,518 – 363 – 7,786 23,276
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General information
Majestic Wine PLC is a public limited company (“Company”) incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 (registration number
2281640). The Company is domiciled in the United Kingdom and its registered address is Majestic House, Otterspool Way, Watford, WD25 8WW. The Company’s
Ordinary Shares are traded on the Alternative Investment Market (“AIM”).

The Group’s principal activity is the retailing of wines, beers and spirits. The Company’s principal activity is to act as a holding company for its subsidiaries.

2. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS
The Group’s and Company’s financial statements for the year ended 30 March 2009 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2009 and the
balance sheets were signed on the Board’s behalf by Simon Burke.

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations as endorsed by the European Union, and with those parts of the Companies Acts 1985 and 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on the same basis and as permitted by Section 230(3)
of the Companies Act 1985. No income statement is presented for the Company.

3. Basis of preparation
The financial year represents the 52 weeks to 30 March 2009 and the prior financial year, 52 weeks to 31 March 2008. The financial statements are presented in
sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies set out in note 4 have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRS during the year.

IAS 23 Borrowing costs
The Group has early adopted the amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing costs during the year. Adoption of this revised standard has resulted in the capitalisation of
borrowing costs which relate to qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. In accordance with the transitional provisions in the standard, the Group has adopted this as a prospective change. No changes have been made to
borrowing costs prior to 1 April 2008. Borrowing costs of £88,000 have been capitalised in the year to 30 March 2009.

4. Accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The full year consolidated financial statements incorporate the results and net assets of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to the nearest
Monday to 31 March each year. The interim results are prepared for the first 26 weeks of the relevant full period.

Intercompany transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated upon consolidation.

Company investment in subsidiaries
In its separate financial statements the Company recognises its investments in subsidiaries at cost. Income is recognised from these investments only in relation
to distributions received from post acquisition profits.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue consists of:
– sales through retail outlets in the UK and France and trade sales through both head office and our dedicated depot in King’s Cross measured at the fair value
of consideration, net of returns, rebates and value-added taxes and recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer;

– finance revenue is interest receivable from bank deposits, interest receivable from lessees under the terms of their leases and interest receivable from
HM Revenue & Customs on corporation tax paid on account and is recognised on an effective interest rate basis;

– other operating income comprises rental income receivable from sub-let premises and is recognised on an accruals basis; and
– dividends receivable by the Company are from subsidiary undertakings and are recognised when the Company has the right to receive them.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Accounting policies continued

Finance costs

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are measured initially at the fair value of
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised respectively in finance revenue and finance cost.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset are
capitalised while the asset is being constructed as part of the cost of that asset. The policy is adopted for all assets that meet the definition of qualifying assets
under IAS 23.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs commence when:
– expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred; and
– activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use. When construction occurs piecemeal and use of each part is
possible as construction continues, capitalisation for each part ceases on substantial completion of that part.

For borrowing associated with a specific asset, the actual borrowing costs less any investment income on temporary investment of those borrowings are
capitalised. To the extent funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation shall be determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditure on that asset. The capitalisation rate shall be the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the entity that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

Exceptional items
The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the income statement, those material items of income and expenses which, because of the nature and
expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation. This allows shareholders to understand the elements of trading performance
in the year, to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to better assess trends in trading performance.

Intangible assets

Licenses and computer software
Licenses and computer software are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss. Externally acquired computer software and software
licences are capitalised at the costs incurred to acquire and bring in to use the specific software. These assets are considered to have finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life of each of the assets. This is considered to be between three and five years for computer
software and for licenses it is the term of the relevant license.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as an asset on the Group’s balance sheet in the year in which it arises. Goodwill is not
amortised and is tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently if events or changes indicate that the carrying value may be impaired and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units on which it arose. Any
impairment is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement and is not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 31 December 1997 and before 28 March 2005 (the date of transition to IFRS) has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 31 December 1997 was written off
immediately against reserves. This has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment in value. Cost comprises the aggregate amount
paid to acquire the asset and includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost of the assets to their residual values, on a straight-line method on the following bases:
– Freehold buildings and leasehold properties – 50 years, or the lease term if shorter.
– Equipment, fittings and vehicles – at rates varying from 10% to 33%.
– Freehold land is not depreciated.

Land and buildings under construction and non current assets held for sale are not depreciated.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate on an annual basis. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in the year
that the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible fixed assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use, is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Cash generating units are generally considered to be
individual stores.

An impairment charge is recognised in the income statement in the year in which it occurs. Where an impairment loss, other than an impairment loss on
goodwill, subsequently reverses due to a change in its original estimate, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first in, first out basis and includes carriage and duty costs. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to disposal.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, which are generally received on end of month following terms, are recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced value and
recoverable amount. Provision is made when it is likely that the balance will not be recovered in full. Balances are written off when the probability of recovery is
considered remote.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as components of cash and cash equivalents for
the purposes of the cash flow statement.

Non current assets held for sale
Non current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through sales rather than continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met if management are committed to the sale and the asset is available for immediate disposal in its present condition. Non current assets classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Foreign currencies

Foreign operations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling which is the Company’s functional and presentational currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The income and expenses
of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average rate of exchange ruling during the year. The balance sheet of the overseas subsidiary undertaking is
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising, if any, are included within equity and transferred to
the Group’s currency translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the income statement for the period.
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4. Accounting policies continued

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

Leased assets

Group as lessee
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets leased under operating leases are not recorded on the balance sheet. Rental payments are charged directly to the income statement. Lease incentives,
primarily up-front cash payments or rent-free periods, are capitalised and spread over the period of the lease term. Payments made to acquire operating leases are
treated as prepaid lease expenses and amortised over the life of the lease.

Group as lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over their useful lives. Rental income, including the effect
of lease incentives, is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Pensions
The Group contributes to the personal pension plans of certain staff. The contributions are charged as an expense as they fall due. Any contributions unpaid at the
balance sheet date are included as an accrual at that date. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Share based payments
The Group provides benefits to employees (including Directors) in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange
for rights over shares (“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of the equity-settled transactions with employees and Directors is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date at which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award. Fair value of employee share option plans is calculated using the Black-Scholes model. In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (market conditions).

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Directors’ best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest on achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions or in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vested as described above. The movement in the cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet
date is recognised in the income statement, with the corresponding increase in equity.

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards so as to apply IFRS 2 only to those equity-settled awards
granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested before 28 March 2005.

Income taxes
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the tax bases and the accounting bases
of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax is calculated on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except where the deferred income tax liability from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other only when the Group has a legally enforceable right
to do so and the Company intends to settle them on a net basis.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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4. Accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations arising from operational activities. These instruments are
primarily foreign exchange forward contracts. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. However if derivatives
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted for as such.

All derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are also measured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. For derivative financial instruments not designated as a
hedge, any change in fair value is immediately recognised in the income statement.

There were no derivatives accounted for using hedge accounting during the year.

Own shares
Majestic Wine PLC shares held by the Company and the Group are classified in shareholders’ equity as ‘Capital Reserve-Own Shares’ and are recognised at cost.
No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase or sale of such shares.

Use of assumptions and estimates
The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The resulting accounting estimates calculated using these judgements and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results but
are based on historical experience and expectations of future events. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are those related to establishing depreciation
and amortisation periods for the Group, and the estimates in relation to future cash flows and discount rates utilised in impairment testing.

New standards and interpretations not applied
The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB. They become effective after the current year and have not been early adopted by the
Group and Company:

To be
adopted by the

Group and Company
during years

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Effective date commencing

IFRS 8 Operating Segments 01.01.2009 31.03.2009
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) 01.01.2009 31.03.2009
IAS 27 Consolidations (Revised) 01.07.2009 30.03.2010
IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 01.07.2009 30.03.2010
IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations 01.01.2009 31.03.2009
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure (Amendment) 01.01.2009 31.03.2009

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 01.07.2008 31.03.2009

The impact on the Group’s and Company’s financial statements on adoption of these new standards is not expected to be material.
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5. Segment reporting
The Group’s primary segmental reporting format is geographical, based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. Secondary information is
reported by a single business segment, retailing.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items are taxation related assets and liabilities. Inter-segment transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third
parties. Segment results include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated on consolidation. Segment capital expenditure is the total
cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one period including items held for resale and prepaid
operating lease costs.

Geographical segments
Retailing Retailing

UK France Unallocated Group
£000 £000 £000 £000

Segment analysis 2009
Segment revenue 192,382 9,412 – 201,794

Segment result before exceptional items 12,468 405 – 12,873
Exceptional items – (5,331) – (5,331)

Segment result 12,468 (4,926) – 7,542
Finance revenue 17 38 – 55
Finance costs (218) – – (218)

Profit/(loss) before tax 12,267 (4,888) – 7,379
Income tax expense (3,973) (144) – (4,117)

Profit/(loss) for the year 8,294 (5,032) – 3,262

Segment assets 105,066 6,313 298 111,677

Segment liabilities (59,368) (1,652) (3,041) (64,061)

Other segment items:
Purchase of non current assets including business combinations 11,617 5 – 11,622
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 2,935 5,456 – 8,391
Share based payments 266 – – 266

Retailing Retailing
UK France Unallocated Group

£000 £000 £000 £000

Segment analysis 2008
Segment revenue 185,283 11,743 – 197,026

Segment result before exceptional items 14,757 1,406 – 16,163
Exceptional items 341 – – 341

Segment result 15,098 1,406 – 16,504
Finance revenue 190 69 – 259
Finance costs (61) – – (61)

Profit before tax 15,227 1,475 – 16,702
Income tax expense (4,977) (471) – (5,448)

Profit for the year 10,250 1,004 – 11,254

Segment assets 84,925 11,659 452 97,036

Segment liabilities (42,298) (2,698) (2,621) (47,617)

Other segment items:
Purchase of non current assets 10,519 103 – 10,622
Depreciation and amortisation 2,637 125 – 2,762
Share based payments 498 – – 498
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6. Operating profit
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following items:
Depreciation 2,692 2,562
Amortisation and impairment 5,699 200
Operating lease rentals – land and buildings 6,965 6,017

– other leases 713 676
– sublease payments received (631) (535)

Loss/(profit) on sale of plant and equipment 51 (10)
Bad debt expense 165 119
Net foreign currency exchange loss 171 99
Auditor’s remuneration:
Audit of the Group financial statements 19 10
Local statutory audits for subsidiaries 51 56
Taxation services – 5

No audit fee has been charged in Majestic Wine PLC. In addition to the fees charged above, £79,000 of costs relating to the due diligence work on the acquisition
of Lay & Wheeler has been capitalised.

7. Employee information

The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was as follows:
2009 2008

Head office, including distribution 128 117
Store staff 672 661

800 778

Staff costs for the above employees during the year amounted to:
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Wages and salaries 18,324 17,677
Social security costs 1,868 1,731
Pension costs 462 311
Share based payments expense (note 26) 266 498

20,920 20,217

Directors’ emoluments
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Salary and benefits 753 847
Deferred bonus in respect of the 2005 financial year – 14

Aggregate emoluments 753 861

Gain made on exercise of share options 90 34
Company pension contributions to money purchase schemes for four Directors (2008: 4) 308 167

1,151 1,062

Highest paid Director
Salary and benefits 142 302

Aggregate emoluments 142 302

Gain made on exercise of share options 90 17
Company pension contributions to money purchase scheme 213 85

445 404
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8. Finance revenue and costs
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Interest on bank overdrafts (197) (61)
Interest on term loan (21) -
Bank interest receivable 55 198
Other interest receivable – 61

Net finance (cost)/revenue (163) 198

A further £88,000 (2008: £nil) of interest paid during the period has been capitalised under IAS 23 and included within additions in note 14, resulting in total
cash flows relating to interest payable of £288,000 (2008: £53,000).

9. Exceptional items
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax:
Goodwill impairment (5,331) –
Profit on disposal of property – 341

(5,331) 341

Goodwill impairment
Goodwill is subject to an impairment review annually and whenever changes in events or circumstances indicate that an impairment may be have occurred.
Goodwill, which arose on the acquisition of Les Celliers de Calais S.A.S. trading as Wine and Beer World, whose principal activity is the retailing of wines, beers
and spirits in France, is not amortised but tested for impairment. The Directors have interpreted the economic environment and resulting retail downturn as
external indicators of impairment. The recoverable amount of the French retailing business has been determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and changes in income and costs. The Group prepares discounted cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board covering a one year period. Cash flows beyond the budget were then further risk adjusted based
on a like for like sales decline of 20% initially with zero growth thereafter for income and cost and wage inflation not exceeding 3% per annum. The discount rate
is estimated using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the French business. A pre-tax
discount rate of 10.0% has been used. The resulting impairment charge which has been recognised during the financial year was £5,331,000 (2008: £nil).
The Directors believe that the value in use calculation remains sensitive to fluctuations in income and an adverse change would cause the carrying value to
exceed its recoverable amount and trigger a further impairment loss to be recognised, as shown in the table below:

Increase/
(decrease) in
impairment

£000

Further increase in sales in year one +5% (1,415)
Further decrease in sales in year one -5% 1,698

Profit on disposal of property
In the prior year profit on disposal of fixed assets arises from the disposal of leasehold flats and freehold property.
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10. Taxation

a) Taxation charge
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Current income tax expense:
UK income tax 3,941 4,765
Overseas income tax on subsidiary undertaking 151 496
Adjustment in respect of the previous year (256) (27)

Total current income tax expense 3,836 5,234

UK deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (8) 214
Adjustment in respect of prior years 289 (39)
Change in tax rate on prior year balances – 39

Total deferred tax expense 281 214

Total income tax expense charged in the income statement 4,117 5,448

b) Taxation reconciliation
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Profit before tax 7,379 16,702
Taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2008: 30%) 2,066 5,011
Adjustments in respect of prior years 33 (66)
Overseas income tax at higher rates 22 50
Non-deductible expenses 1,999 449
Change in tax rate on current year deferred tax – (23)
Change in tax rate on prior year balances – 39
Income not taxable (3) (12)

Total income tax expense charged in the income statement 4,117 5,448

Effective tax rate 55.8% 32.6%

Effective tax rate on underlying profit before tax 32.4% 32.7%
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10. Taxation continued

c) Tax on items charged to equity
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Current tax credit on share based payments (34) (157)
Deferred tax charge on share based payments 103 608
Change in tax rate on prior year balances – 19

Total tax on items charged to equity 69 470

d) Deferred tax
Accelerated Short-term Share- Total Deferred

tax temporary based deferred tax tax
depreciation differences payments assets liabilities Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 2 April 2007 (185) 590 866 1,271 (404) 867
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 36 (60) (168) (192) (22) (214)
Charged to equity – (46) (581) (627) – (627)

At 31 March 2008 (149) 484 117 452 (426) 26
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 90 (364) (7) (281) – (281)
Charged to equity – (26) (77) (103) – (103)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (63) (543) – (606) – (606)

At 30 March 2009 (122) (449) 33 (538) (426) (964)

The deferred tax liabilities relate solely to held-over capital gains arising on the disposal of freehold properties.

Disclosed in the Group Balance Sheet:
Deferred tax assets 298
Deferred tax liabilities (1,262)

(964)

e) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Group’s overseas tax rate is higher than that in the UK as profits earned by Les Celliers de Calais S.A.S. in France are taxed at a rate of 32.5% (2008: 31.9%).

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional taxation should such amounts be
remitted due to the availability of double taxation relief. The temporary difference unrecognised at the year end amounted to £124,000 (2008: £443,000).
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11. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue
during the year, excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (note 25), which are treated as cancelled.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potential dilutive Ordinary Shares.
These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s Ordinary Shares during the
year. Share options granted over 2,551,696 (2008: 671,412) Ordinary Shares have not been included in the dilutive earnings per share calculation because they
are anti dilutive at the period end.

Underlying earnings per share is calculated by excluding the effect of impairment of goodwill and any gain or loss on the disposal of property. This alternative
measure of earnings per share is presented to reflect the Group’s underlying trading performance.

2009 2008

Weighted average number of shares in issue 61,480,345 62,842,155
Dilutive potential Ordinary Shares:
Employee share options 103,906 575,301

Total number of shares for calculating diluted earnings per share 61,584,251 63,417,456

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,262 11,254
Add/(less):
Impairment of goodwill 5,331 –
Profit on disposal of properties, net of tax – (239)

Underlying profit after tax 8,593 11,015

2009 2008

Basic earnings 5.3p 17.9p
Diluted earnings 5.3p 17.7p

Underlying basic earnings 14.0p 17.5p
Underlying diluted earnings 14.0p 17.4p

12. Dividends paid and proposed
2009 2008
£000 £000

Equity dividends on Ordinary Shares declared and paid during the year:
Final dividend for 2008: 7.0p (2007: 6.2p) 4,291 3,961
Interim for 2009: 2.8p (2008: 2.8p) 1,719 1,741

Equity dividends paid 6,010 5,702

Proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM:
Final dividend for 2009: 7.0p (2008: 7.0p) 4,302 4,320
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13. Goodwill and intangible assets
Group

Facilities
and trademark

Software license Goodwill Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost:
At 31 March 2008 1,737 – 7,112 8,849
Additions 199 – – 199
Acquired through business combinations (see note 17) 257 2,985 2,258 5,500
Foreign currency adjustment 24 – 1,176 1,200

At 30 March 2009 2,217 2,985 10,546 15,748

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses:
At 31 March 2008 1,059 – – 1,059
Amortisation and impairment during the year (see note 9) 212 – 5,331 5,543
Foreign currency adjustment 17 – – 17

At 30 March 2009 1,288 – 5,331 6,619

Net carrying value:
At 30 March 2009 929 2,985 5,215 9,129

At 31 March 2008 678 – 7,112 7,790

Cost:
At 2 April 2007 1,330 – 6,054 7,384
Additions 420 – – 420
Foreign currency adjustment 18 – 1,058 1,076
Disposals (31) – – (31)

At 31 March 2008 1,737 – 7,112 8,849

Amortisation:
At 2 April 2007 958 – – 958
Amortisation during the year 119 – – 119
Foreign currency adjustment 13 – – 13
Disposals (31) – – (31)

At 31 March 2008 1,059 – – 1,059

Net carrying value:
At 31 March 2008 678 – 7,112 7,790

At 2 April 2007 372 – 6,054 6,426
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14. Property, plant and equipment
Group

Land and buildings

Equipment
Long Leasehold fittings &

Freehold leasehold improvements vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2008 28,686 439 10,120 15,374 54,619
Additions 3,581 – 1,792 1,457 6,830
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries – – 989 169 1,158
Foreign currency adjustment – – 111 77 188
Disposals – – (26) (371) (397)

At 30 March 2009 32,267 439 12,986 16,706 62,398

Depreciation:
At 31 March 2008 1,177 33 2,714 7,936 11,860
Charge for year 262 4 656 1,770 2,692
Foreign currency adjustment – – 67 69 136
Disposals – – (20) (248) (268)

At 30 March 2009 1,439 37 3,417 9,527 14,420

Net book value:
At 30 March 2009 30,828 402 9,569 7,179 47,978

At 31 March 2008 27,509 406 7,406 7,438 42,759

Cost or valuation:
At 2 April 2007 24,098 439 7,868 13,865 46,270
Additions 5,856 – 2,172 1,815 9,843
Foreign currency adjustment – – 99 73 172
Transferred to assets held for sale (1,268) – – (51) (1,319)
Disposals – – (19) (328) (347)

At 31 March 2008 28,686 439 10,120 15,374 54,619

Depreciation:
At 2 April 2007 971 29 2,101 6,446 9,547
Charge for year 227 4 576 1,755 2,562
Foreign currency adjustment – – 49 60 109
Transferred to assets held for sale (21) – – (37) (58)
Disposals – – (12) (288) (300)

At 31 March 2008 1,177 33 2,714 7,936 11,860

Net book value:
At 31 March 2008 27,509 406 7,406 7,438 42,759

At 2 April 2007 23,127 410 5,767 7,419 36,723

Freehold land and buildings includes £15,364,000 (2008: £13,764,000) in respect of land that is not depreciated. Included within additions for the year is an
amount of £88,000 (2008: £nil) of capitalised interest.
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15. Prepaid operating lease costs
Group

Prepaid
Total
£000

Cost:
At 31 March 2008 2,764
Additions 211
Disposals (7)

At 30 March 2009 2,968

Amortisation:
At 31 March 2008 1,236
Amortisation during the year 156
Disposals (7)

At 30 March 2009 1,385

Net book value:
At 30 March 2009 1,583

At 31 March 2008 1,528

Cost:
At 2 April 2007 2,408
Additions 359
Disposals (3)

At 31 March 2008 2,764

Amortisation:
At 2 April 2007 1,157
Amortisation during the year 81
Disposals (2)

At 31 March 2008 1,236

Net book value:
At 31 March 2008 1,528

At 2 April 2007 1,251
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16. Investments in subsidiaries
Company

£000

Cost or valuation:
Shares in Group undertakings at 31 March 2008 and 30 March 2009 12,021

Amounts provided:
At 31 March 2008 –
Provided during the year 4,039

At 30 March 2009 4,039

Net book value:
At 30 March 2009 7,982

At 31 March 2008 12,021

The amount provided during the year is in relation to the write down of the French business, Les Celliers de Calais S.A.S. trading as Wine and Beer World and is
further discussed in notes 9 and 13.

The Company owns the following:
i) 100% of the ordinary share capital of Majestic Wine Warehouses Limited, a company registered in England and Wales, whose principal activity is the retailing

of wines, beers and spirits.
ii) 100% of the ordinary share capital of Les Celliers de Calais S.A.S., a company registered in France, whose principal activity is the retailing of wines, beers and

spirits.
iii) 100% of the ordinary share capital of Majestic Wine Employee Share Ownership Trust Limited, a company registered in England and Wales, whose principal

activity is acting as a discretionary trust for the benefit of the Group’s employees.
iv) Through Majestic Wine Warehouses Limited:
(a) 100% of the ordinary share capital of Vinotheque Holdings Limited, a company registered in England and Wales, whose principal activity is property

management.
(b) 100% of the share capital of WBI Holdco Limited, a holding company registered in England and Wales, which owns 100% of the share capital of WBI Ltd,

a non trading company registered in England and Wales.
(c) Through WBI Limited, 100% of ordinary share capital of Lay & Wheeler Limited, a company registered in England and Wales, whose principal activity is

importation, sales and storage of fine wines and related services.
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17. Business combinations

On 6 March 2009, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Vinotheque Holdings Limited and WBI Holdco Limited (and its subsidiaries WBI Limited
and Lay & Wheeler Limited), collectively known as Lay & Wheeler.

The net assets and results of the acquired businesses are included in the consolidated accounts of the Group from the date of acquisition. IFRS 3 Business
Combinations has been applied and the goodwill arising has been capitalised and is subject to annual impairment testing.

The goodwill arising on the business combination has been allocated to the single group of cash-generating units represented by the acquired businesses,
as this is the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored internally. Goodwill arising on the acquisition is mainly attributable to the assembled
workforce and opportunities to achieve a faster rate of growth and greater operating efficiency that do not meet the criteria for recognition as a separate
intangible asset at the date of acquisition.

The fair values currently established for the acquisition are provisional due to the proximity of the year end date and will be reviewed based on additional
information up to one year from the date of acquisition. The Directors do not believe that any net adjustments resulting from such a review would have a material
effect on the Group.

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying values on
amounts acquisition

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 1,158 1,158
Intangible assets – software 257 257
– facilities and trademark licence – 2,985
Deferred tax asset/(liability) 10 (606)
Inventories 4,075 3,975
Trade and other receivables 2,054 5,734
Cash and cash equivalents 345 345
Trade and other payables (5,542) (10,109)
Corporation tax liability (114) (114)
Bank overdraft (1,413) (1,413)

Net assets acquired 830 2,212
Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,258

4,470
Discharged by:
Cash consideration 4,219
Costs associated with the acquisition 251

Total consideration 4,470

There is a potential deferred consideration of £501,000 which is specific to a deferred tax asset that is currently under negotiation with HMRC. The full amount
of the potential deferred consideration is being held in an escrow account and has been included within cash and cash equivalents.

The acquired businesses have contributed £785,000 to sales and a £126,000 loss to operating profit in the period since the acquisition. If the acquisition had
been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group sales for the year would have been £214,240,000 and Group profits attributable to equity holders
in the parent company would have been £3,462,000.

18. Inventories
Group Group Company Company

30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000 £000 £000

Goods for resale 37,752 34,601 – –

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and charged to the income statement was £143,471,000 (2008: £139,168,000).
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19. Trade and other receivables
Group Group Company Company

30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade receivables 4,266 3,351 – –
Amounts due from Group undertakings – – 17,294 15,788
Other debtors 317 279 – –
Prepayments and accrued income 6,948 3,343 – –

11,531 6,973 17,294 15,788

The amounts due from Group undertakings have no fixed payment terms and are interest free. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-
90 days’ terms. Trade receivables are shown net of a provision for impairment. The movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

Group Group Company Company
30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at the beginning of the year 135 86 – –
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 15 – – –
Charge for the year 165 119 – –
Uncollectable amounts written off (237) (70) – –

Balance at the end of the year 78 135 – –

As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

Neither Up to 3 to 6 Over
past due nor 3 months months 6 months

Total impaired past due past due past due
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Group
As at 30 March 2009 4,266 3,188 675 333 70

As at 31 March 2008 3,351 2,238 856 192 65

20. Trade and other payables
Group Group Company Company

30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000 £000 £000

Current:
Trade payables 40,876 34,061 – –
Other taxes and social security 2,650 2,173 – –
Accruals and other payables 5,631 4,942 – –

Non current:
Amounts due to Group undertakings – – 2,000 2,000

49,157 41,176 2,000 2,000

The amounts due to Group undertakings have no fixed repayment terms, are interest free and are not expected to be settled within one year.
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21. Financial liabilities
Group

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Current:
Term Loan 669 –
Bank overdrafts 3,950 2,735

4,619 2,735

Non current:
Term loan 6,245 –

6,245 –

22. Provision for liabilities
Group

Provision
for lease National

exit Insurance Total
£000 £000 £000

At 31 March 2008 140 92 232
Provided/(released) in the year 10 (52) (42)
Utilised in year (58) (11) (69)

At 30 March 2009 92 29 121

Analysis of total provisions:
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Current 121 213
Non current – 19

121 232

a) Provision for lease exit:
During the year the Company re-sited a number of stores, some of which were rented under non-cancellable operating leases. The provision is the Directors’ best
estimate of the costs associated with surrendering or assigning the leases including legal costs, empty property costs and surrender premiums payable.

b) National insurance:
National insurance contributions which will become payable on exercise of share options have been provided. The share options can be exercised at various dates
from the balance sheet date to 17 July 2018. The amount payable is dependent on the Company’s share price at the date of exercise of the options. The provision
which is allocated on a time weighted basis over the period from date of grant to the date that employees become unconditionally entitled to the options has
been calculated on the share price at the balance sheet date of 156p and the assumption that 100% of employees will exercise their share options and that the
rate of NIC is 12.8%.

23. Deferred lease inducements
Group

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Current 109 94
Non current 769 749

878 843

Deferred lease inducements comprise rent free periods and premiums received from lessors in respect of operating leases. These lease incentives are recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the full term of each relevant lease.
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24. Share capital and reserves

Called up share capital 2009 2008

Number Value Number Value
£000 £000

Authorised
Ordinary Shares of 7.5p each 140,000,000 10,500 140,000,000 10,500

Alloted, called up and fully paid:
In issue at beginning of period 61,711,115 4,628 64,041,800 4,803
Issued on exercise of share options 141,488 11 393,838 29
Issued to ESOT – – 52,476 4
Share buybacks (394,200) (30) (2,776,999) (208)

In issue at end of period 61,458,403 4,609 61,711,115 4,628

Issue of new shares:
During the year 141,488 (2008: 446,314) Ordinary Shares of 7.5p each were allotted for a consideration of £170,000 (2008: £874,000). The shares were allotted
during the year under the terms of the Company’s share option and deferred bonus schemes which are described in note 26.

Purchase of own shares:
During the year 394,200 (2008: 2,776,999) Ordinary Shares representing 0.6% of the issued share capital of the Company and having a nominal value of
£30,000 (2008: £208,000) were purchased by the Company for an aggregate consideration of £828,000 (2008: £9,496,000). The reason for the purchase was to
return cash to shareholders. The shares purchased were then cancelled and the nominal value transferred to the capital redemption reserve.

Share premium account
The share premium account represents the amounts received by the Company on the issue of Ordinary Shares that are in excess of the nominal value of the
issued shares.

Capital reserve – own shares
The Group holds shares in an employee share ownership trust (see note 25). The reserve represents the cost of acquired shares that have not as yet fully vested
with employees.

Capital redemption reserve
The Company when cancelling its Ordinary Shares transfers amounts equivalent to the nominal value of the cancelled shares into the capital redemption reserve
so as to maintain the level of non-distributable reserves in shareholders’ equity.

Currency translation reserve
The currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

25. Employee Share Ownership Trust
The trust is used to acquire shares in Majestic Wine PLC to satisfy awards under the deferred bonus scheme. The shares are distributed to participants of the
scheme at the end of a two-year deferral period.

At the year end the trust held 27,823 (2008: 28,206) shares with a nominal value of 7.5p each, which are not yet fully vested with the participants. The total
acquisition cost of these shares was £103,000 (2008: £105,000). At the year end the market value of these shares was £43,000 (2008: £63,000).

The shares held by the trust are due to be settled in June 2009 and represent the maximum due to employees under the deferred bonus scheme after the two
year deferral period for the 2007 award.
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26. Share-based payments

The total charge recognised in the Income Statement in respect of share-based payments is £266,000 (2008: £498,000) which is made up of share option
schemes and share bonus payments under the Company’s deferred bonus scheme.

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Share option schemes 245 477
Deferred bonus scheme 21 21

Total charged to income statement 266 498

a) Share option schemes
The Company operated seven share option schemes during the year, all of which are equity settled.

Savings related share option schemes
These schemes permit the grants to employees of options in respect of Ordinary Shares linked to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of
three or five years with contributions from employees limited to a maximum amount of £250 per month. Options granted under the schemes are exercisable at
the end of the three or five-year period, provided that the employee has been in continuous employment in a Group company throughout, at a subscription price
not less than 80% of the average of the middle-market quotations of an Ordinary Share over the three dealing days immediately preceding the offer date.

The Company operated the following savings related option schemes during the year.
i) The Majestic Wine PLC 1996 Savings Related Share Option Scheme was adopted on 9 September 1996 and the authority to grant options under the scheme

expired in September 2007. There were no discounted options granted during the year under this scheme.
ii) The Majestic Wine PLC 2006 Savings Related Share Option Scheme was adopted on 4 August 2006 and achieved HMRC approval for tax purposes on

7 December 2006. The first offer of discounted options under the rules of this scheme was made in January 2007.

No grants were made under this scheme during the year.

Approved and unapproved executive share option schemes
These schemes permit the grant of options in respect of Ordinary Shares to selected employees. Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years
from the date of grant for consideration not less than market value at grant date. Apart from grants of options to executive Directors, the exercise of options is
normally not subject to any conditions other than continuous employment. The exercise of options granted to executive Directors is conditional on the
achievement of specified performance targets related to growth in earnings per share over a three-year period. The executive Directors’ participation in the
Group’s executive share option schemes is limited such that they are eligible to receive options over shares in value up to a maximum of two times gross salary
at the date of grant which will only become exercisable on the achievement of performance criteria determined by the remuneration committee.

The Company operated the following approved and unapproved executive share option schemes.
i) The Majestic Wine PLC Approved Executive Share Option Scheme (1996) was adopted on 14 October 1996. The authority to grant options under this

scheme expired in October 2006.
ii) The Majestic Wine PLC Approved Executive Share Option Scheme (2006) was adopted on 4 August 2006 and achieved HMRC approval for tax purposes on

7 December 2006. The first grant of options under the rules of this scheme was made in January 2007.
iii) The Majestic Wine PLC Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme (1996) was adopted on 14 October 1996. The authority to grant options under this

scheme expired in October 2006.
iv) The Majestic Wine PLC Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme (2006) was adopted on 4 August 2006. The first grant of options under the rules of this

scheme was made in January 2007.

Co-investment plan
The Majestic Wine PLC Co-Investment Plan was adopted on 6 August 2004. This scheme permits the grant of options in respect of Ordinary Shares to selected
executives. Participants are required to hold shares in the plan and options are granted in proportion to the number of shares invested. Options are normally
exercisable between three and ten years from date of grant for nil consideration. The exercise of options will normally be conditional on the achievement of
specified performance targets related to total shareholder return over a three-year period.

No grants were made under this scheme during the year.
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26. Share-based payments continued

The following table reconciles the number of share options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price (WAEP):

52 weeks to 52 weeks to 52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 30.03.09 31.03.08 31.03.08

Note Options WAEP Options WAEP

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year a 2,733,657 £2.32 2,901,575 £2.26
Exercised b (141,488) £1.20 (393,838) £1.71
Lapsed (574,477) £1.75 (293,964) £2.80
Granted 937,000 £1.68 519,884 £2.50

Outstanding as at the end of the year 2,954,692 £2.28 2,733,657 £2.32

Exercisable as at the end of the year 1,154,623 £2.22 857,570 £1.94

Weighted average remaining contractual life in years 6.40 6.31

Notes:
a) Included within this figure were options over 214,970 (2008: 309,170) shares that were granted on or before 7 November 2002. The Group has elected to

take advantage of the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 and has only applied the fair value model to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002
that had not vested as at 28 March 2005.

b) Share options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year. The weighted average share price for options exercised during the year was £2.09
(2008: £3.03).

The fair value of equity-settled share options is estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following table lists the range
of assumptions applied to the options granted in the respective periods shown.

Savings Savings
related Executive Co– related Executive Co-
option option investment option option investment

schemes schemes plan schemes schemes plan
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008

Weighted average share price at grant n/a £1.71 n/a n/a £3.54 £3.90
Weighted average exercise price n/a £1.68 n/a n/a £3.50 £0.00
Expected life of options (years) n/a 3.6 – 4 n/a n/a 3.6 – 4 3
Contractual life (years) n/a 10 n/a n/a 10 10
Volatility (%) n/a 25% n/a n/a 20% – 22% 21%
Dividend yield (%) n/a 5.74% n/a n/a 2.18-2.10% 2.18%
Risk free interest rate (%) n/a 4.89% n/a n/a 4.42-5.59% 5.58%
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year n/a £0.24 n/a n/a £0.63 £2.19

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

b) Deferred bonus scheme
The Group operates a deferred bonus scheme for senior managers, which excludes the executive Directors. The scheme involves the award of bonus shares to
participants subject to meeting performance criteria. Participants may defer the award of the bonus shares for two years and so long as they are in continuous
employment throughout this period, the Company will award an equivalent number of matching shares. The cost of the scheme is charged to the income
statement over a three-year period. The bonus shares are expensed in the initial year of operation and the matching loyalty shares over the initial year and the
two-year deferral period.

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

2007 Scheme 21 21

Total charged to the income statement 21 21

Note there was no award under the scheme for the 2008 and 2009 financial years.
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27. Commitments

a) Operating lease agreements where Group is lessee:
The Group leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights.

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases expiring:
Within one year 7,565 6,659
Between one and five years 25,273 21,359
In over five years 33,224 26,804

66,062 54,822

b) Operating lease commitments where Group is lessor:
The Group leases surplus space in various owner-occupied stores, offices, and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases expiring:
Within one year 572 533
Between one and five years 1,663 1,395
In over five years 2,056 929

4,291 2,857

c) Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure authorised and contracted for but not provided in the accounts amounts to £1,454,000 for the Group (2008: £1,414,000).

28. Notes to the cash flow statements

a) Reconciliation of profit to cash generated/(utilised) by operations
Group Group Company Company

52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
30.03.09 31.03.08 30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the year 3,262 11,254 4,135 8,726
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to cash generated/(utilised) by operations:
Income tax expense 4,117 5,448 – –
Dividends received – – (8,174) (8,726)
Net finance cost/(revenue) 163 (198) – –
Amortisation, impairment and depreciation 8,391 2,762 4,039 –
Loss/(profit) on disposal of non current assets 51 (351) – –
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 824 (4,266) – –
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 1,177 (242) (1,506) 5,598
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2,145) 7,514 – –
Increase in deferred lease inducements 35 45 – –
Change in fair value of derivative instruments (537) (232) – –
Decrease in provisions (111) (146) – –
Share based payments 266 498 – –

Cash generated/(utilised) by operations 15,493 22,086 (1,506) 5,598
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28. Notes to the cash flow statements continued

b) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Group cash flow statements cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Group
Cash and cash equivalents per Group balance sheet 2,572 2,626
Bank overdraft per Group balance sheet (3,950) (2,735)

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statements (1,378) (109)

c) Analysis of net debt
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Group
Total cash and cash equivalents (1,378) (109)
Term loan included in current liabilities (669) –
Term loan included in non current liabilities (6,245) –

Total net debt (8,292) (109)

d) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
30.03.09 31.03.08

£000 £000

Group
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,440) (4,803)
New term loan (7,000) –
Capitalisation of arrangement fees 88 –
Amortisation of arrangement fees (2) –
Effect of foreign exchange differences 171 210

Movement in net debt (8,183) (4,593)
Net (debt)/funds at beginning of year (109) 4,484

Net debt at end of year (8,292) (109)
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29. Financial instruments
The Group’s financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash, bank borrowings and various items, such as trade receivables and trade payables, that
arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions in the form of forward currency contracts. The purpose of these transactions is to manage the currency risk
arising from the Group’s operations. The Group does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes. The Group’s treasury function is under the direct
control of the Finance Director and does not engage in speculative trading.

The principal financial risks to which the Group is exposed relate to liquidity/funding, credit risk, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Liquidity/funding
Liquidity risk is managed by short-term and medium-term cash flow forecasts. The Group has short-term seasonal borrowing requirements that are backed by an
uncommitted facility agreed with Barclays Bank PLC. The facility is negotiated annually and was current at 30 March 2009 and expires in March 2010. The facility
consists of an overdraft and access to the uncommitted money markets for short term funding requirements. The aggregate of the overdraft and money market
facilities available at 30 March 2009 was £15,000,000 (2008: £4,000,000). The facilities incur arrangement fees at market rates and interest is charged on the
overdraft at a commercial rate over base and on the money market facility at a commercial rate over LIBOR.

Following the acquisition of Lay & Wheeler during March 2009, the Group has a requirement for core funding which is represented by a new term loan arranged
with Barclays Bank PLC. The loan is a committed facility for three years expiring in March 2012. The loan incurred an arrangement fee at market rates and interest
is charged at a commercial rate over LIBOR.

The facilities arranged with Barclays are secured by a fixed and floating charge on the Group’s assets.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 30 March 2009 and 31 March 2008 based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Group
As at 30 March 2009

Due Due
Due between between

within 1 and 2 2 and 3
1 year years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank overdraft 3,950 – – 3,950
Term Loan 963 935 5,758 7,656
Trade and other payables 49,157 – – 49,157
Derivative financial instruments:
Gross settled payments 14,607 – – 14,607
Gross settled receipts (15,470) – – (15,470)

53,207 935 5,758 59,900

As at 31 March 2008
Due Due

Due between between
within 1 and 2 2 and 3
1 year years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank overdraft 2,735 – – 2,735
Trade and other payables 41,176 – – 41,176
Derivative financial instruments:
Gross settled payments 18,284 – – 18,284
Gross settled receipts (18,542) – – (18,542)

43,653 – – 43,653

Company
The Company’s only financial liability is in relation to intercompany balances that have no fixed repayment terms, are interest free and are not expected to be
settled within one year.
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29. Financial instruments continued

Credit risk
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by its carrying
value as at the balance sheet date limited to the value of trade and other receivables.

Risk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour its obligations arises principally from deposits of cash, derivative financial assets and sales on deferred
terms. The Group’s cash deposits are only lodged with, and foreign currency contracts entered into with approved institutions that have secure credit ratings, at
present the only counterparty is Barclays Bank PLC. The Group uses a credit referencing agency to establish third party’s credit worthiness before offering to sell
on deferred terms. Credit limits are assigned to each debtor account and compliance is monitored. In addition trade debtor balances are regularly reviewed with
the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Interest rates
The Group’s financial assets, excluding short-term trade and other receivables, include cash and cash equivalents of £2,572,000 (2008: £2,626,000), in addition to
derivative foreign exchange contracts shown in the table below. Funds not required immediately for the Group’s operations are invested in sterling denominated
deposit accounts. The funds are placed on a combination of overnight and call deposits. The rates are reviewed regularly and the best rate obtained in the context
of the Group’s needs. The weighted average floating interest rate earned in the year on the Group’s sterling deposits was 1.71% (2008: 5.41%). The only interest
risk is related to the floating rates on the cash balances and is insignificant.

The cash profile at 30 March 2009 was:
Cash at floating rates

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Currency:
Sterling 1,527 92
Euros 277 2,401
Australian Dollars 504 92
New Zealand Dollars 5 17
US Dollars 259 24

Sub-total 2,572 2,626
Bank overdraft:
Sterling (3,950) (2,735)

Total (1,378) (109)

Foreign currency exchange rates
Transactional foreign currency exposures arise from the import of goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers. The Group hedges these cash flow exposures by
acquiring forward currency contracts sufficient to cover the anticipated foreign currency denominated purchases. Contracts are put in place prior to the setting of
retail prices. The exposure may be covered up to a period of one year. The majority of these contracts are in Euros maturing in less than one year. At 30 March
2009 the Group had forward contracts in place to cover all of its foreign currency purchases for which firm commitments had been made.

The Group does not use derivatives to hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translation exposures arising on the consolidation of the French subsidiary.
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29. Financial instruments continued

Foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Sterling against the Euro and Australian dollar exchange rates with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax, due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets, liabilities and forward currency contracts.

The currency sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions. Major non-derivative monetary financial instruments (liquid assets, receivables, non-
interest bearing liabilities) are either denominated in the functional currency or are transferred to the functional currency through the use of derivatives. Exchange
rate fluctuations therefore have no effect on profit or loss. The Group is therefore only exposed to currency risk from specific currency derivatives. These
derivatives are used to hedge planned transactions but are not accounted for using hedge accounting.

Increase/decrease Effect on
in Sterling against profit
the Euro/Australian before tax

dollar rate £000

2009
Euro +5% 685

-5% (756)

Australian dollar +5% 23
-5% (25)

2008
Euro +5% 742

-5% (821)

Australian dollar +5% 65
-5% (72)

Derivative financial instruments
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts acquired to hedge the Group’s forecast currency requirements are, for accounting purposes, designated as held for
trading with fair value movements being recognised in the income statement.

The nominal and fair value of forward currency contracts is shown in the following table. All contracts have maturity dates within one year.

Fair value

Nominal
value Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £000

Forward foreign currency contracts as at 30 March 2009 14,607 834 –
Forward foreign currency contracts as at 31 March 2008 18,284 307 (10)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
There were no financial liabilities as at 30 March 2009 or 31 March 2008 apart from the bank overdraft, term loan and short term trade and other payables.
There is no material difference between the book value and the fair value of any financial asset or liability.

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value. The Group considers capital to consist of the total equity of the Group.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the current year.
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30. Related party transactions

Group
Sales and purchases between related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances with entities other than subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and cash settlement is expected by end of month following date of invoice. Terms and conditions for transactions with subsidiaries are the same, with the
exception that balances are placed on intercompany accounts with no specified credit period. The Group has not benefited from any guarantees for any related
party receivables or payables. During the year ended 30 March 2009, the Group has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by
related parties (2008: nil).

The Group considers its key management personnel to be the Directors of the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel is as follows:
52 weeks to 52 weeks to

30.03.09 31.03.08
£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 753 847
Post – employment benefits 308 167
Share-based payment including LTIP 124 185

1,185 1,199

Company
The Company receives dividends from its subsidiary companies. The total dividends received in the year were £8,174,000 (2008: £8,726,000).



Majestic Wine PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
49

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is given that the Annual General Meeting (the "AGM") of Majestic Wine PLC will be held at Majestic House, Otterspool Way, Watford, Hertfordshire
WD25 8WW at 11.30 am on 7 August 2009, for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of which 1 to 6 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolution 7 will be proposed as a
special resolution:

Adoption of accounts
1. To receive and adopt the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 March 2009.

Declaration of dividend
2. To declare a final dividend of 7.0p per Ordinary Share.

Re-election of retiring Director
3. To re-elect Helen Keays as a Director who retires by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Re-election of retiring Director
4. To re-elect Justin Apthorp as Director who retires by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Re-appointment of Auditors
5. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Directors’ power to allot securities
6. That the Directors be and they are generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985, as amended (“the Act”) to

exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined in that section) to such persons and on such terms as they think proper provided
that:
(a) this authority shall be in substitution for any equivalent authority which may have been given to the Directors prior to the date of the passing of this

resolution;
(b) this authority shall be limited to the allotment of relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,536,460 representing approximately 33.3

per cent of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as shown in the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
30 March 2009;

(c) unless previously revoked, varied or extended, this authority shall expire at the earlier of the date which is fifteen months from the passing of this
resolution and the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company except that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or
agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance
of any such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired; and

(d) in relation to the grant of any right to subscribe for, or convert any security into shares in the Company, the reference in this resolution to the maximum
amount of relevant securities that may be allotted is the maximum amount of shares which may be allotted pursuant to such right.

Disapplication of pre-emption rights
7. That the Directors be and they are empowered pursuant to Section 95(1) of the Act to allot equity securities (as defined in Section 94(2) of the Act) of the

Company for cash pursuant to the authority of the Directors under Section 80 of the Act conferred by resolution 6 above and to make sales of shares where
such sales constitute an allotment of equity securities by virtue of Section 94(3A) of the Act as if Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment
provided that:
(a) the power shall be limited to;

(i) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an invitation or offer of equity securities to the holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company (“Ordinary Shares”) excluding the Company where it holds shares as treasury shares (as defined in Section 162A(3) of the Act) in
proportion to their respective holdings of such shares or in accordance with the rights attached to such shares but subject to the exclusions or other
such arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems under the
laws of, or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange in any territory; and

(ii) the allotment, otherwise than as mentioned in sub-paragraph (i) above, of equity securities up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of
£230,469 representing approximately 5 per cent of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as shown in the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 March 2009;

(b) unless previously revoked, varied or extended, this power shall expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company and the date falling fifteen months after the date of the passing of this resolution except that the Company may before the expiry of this power
make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in
pursuance of such offer as if this power had not expired; and

(c) in this resolution the nominal amount of any securities should be taken to be, in the case of a right to subscribe for or convert any securities into shares
of the Company, the nominal amount of the shares which may be allotted pursuant to such right.
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Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass resolutions 8 and 9 which will be proposed as special resolutions, to which reference is made in the explanatory notes
following this Notice below.

Authority to purchase Company’s own shares
8. That the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of Section 166 of the Act to make one or more market

purchases (within the meaning of Section 163(3) of the Act) on a recognised investment exchange (as defined in Section 163(4) of the Act) of ordinary
shares of 7.5 pence each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) and to hold such shares as treasury shares (as defined in Section 162A(3) of the
Act (“treasury shares”)) provided that;
(a) this authority shall be limited to the purchase of Ordinary Shares up to a maximum aggregate nominal value equal to £460,938 representing

approximately 10 per cent of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as shown in the audited accounts of the Company
for the year ended 30 March 2009;

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for such Ordinary Shares is 7.5 pence (exclusive of such expenses);
(c) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for an Ordinary Share shall not be more than 5 per cent above the average of the middle

market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the relevant recognised investment exchange on which the Ordinary Shares are traded for the five business
days immediately preceding the date on which the Ordinary Share is purchased; and

(d) unless previously revoked, varied or extended, the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the earlier of the date which is fifteen months from the date
of the passing of this resolution and the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; and

(e) the Company may make a contract or contracts to purchase Ordinary Shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such authority
which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may make a purchase of Ordinary Shares in pursuance of any such
contract or contracts.

Adoption of new articles of association
9. That the articles of association produced to the meeting and initialed by the chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification be adopted as the

articles of association of the Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association.

Registered office: Majestic House, Otterspool Way, Watford, Hertfordshire WD25 8WW

By order of the Board
Nigel Alldritt
Company Secretary
15 June 2009

Notes:
1. All members who hold Ordinary Shares are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM. A member who is entitled to attend, speak and vote may appoint a

proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member of the Company but must attend the AGM in order to represent you.
A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares (so a member must have
more than one share to be able to appoint more than one proxy). A form of proxy is enclosed. The notes to the form of proxy include instructions on how
to appoint the chairman of the AGM or another person as proxy. To be effective the form of proxy must reach the Company's registrar, Capita Registrars,
The Proxy Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU by 11.30 am on 5 August 2009 (or if the AGM is adjourned, 48 hours
before the time fixed for the adjourned AGM).

2. The register of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company and copies of the Directors’ service contracts, other than those expiring or determinable
without payments of compensation within one year, a copy of the new articles of association of the Company, and a copy of the existing articles of
association are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours on any weekday (Saturday and public
holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the AGM and will be available for inspection at the place of the AGM for at least 15 minutes prior to and
during the AGM.

3. The Company pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, specifies that only those shareholders registered in the register of
members of the Company at 6pm on 5 August 2009 (or if the AGM is adjourned, 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned AGM) shall be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. Any changes to the register of members after such time
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the AGM.

4. Please note that communications regarding the matters set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting will not be accepted in electronic form.

5. In order to facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that (a) if a corporate
shareholder has appointed the chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative to vote on a poll in accordance with the directions of all of the other
corporate representatives for that shareholder at the meeting, then on a poll those corporate representatives will give voting directions to the chairman and
the chairman will vote (or withhold a vote) as corporate representative in accordance with those directions; and (b) if more than one corporate
representative for the same corporate shareholder attends the meeting but the corporate shareholder has not appointed the chairman of the meeting as its
corporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate representatives who attend, who will vote on a poll
and the other corporate representatives will give voting directions to that designated corporate representative. Corporate shareholders are referred to the
guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators on proxies and corporate representatives (www.icsa.org.uk) for further details
of this procedure. The guidance includes a sample form of appointment letter if the chairman is being appointed as described in (a) above.
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Explanatory notes on certain business of the Annual General Meeting

Resolution 6: Directors’ power to allot securities
Under Section 80 of the Act, relevant shares may only be issued with the consent of the shareholders, unless the shareholders pass a resolution generally
authorising directors to issue shares without further reference to the shareholders. This resolution authorises the issue of part of the unissued share capital for the
period to the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in 2009. It complies with the Association of British Insurers’ guidelines.

Resolution 7: Disapplication of pre-emption rights
Resolution 7 empowers the Directors to allot equity securities (such as Ordinary Shares) for cash and make sales of treasury shares other than in accordance with
Section 89 of the Act which requires a company to offer all allotments of equity securities for cash and all sales of treasury shares first to existing shareholders in
proportion to their holdings following a statutory pre-emption procedure. In the case of a rights issue this may prove both costly and cumbersome. This resolution
excludes these rights as far as rights issues are concerned and enables Directors to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal value of £230,469 which is
approximately 5% of the current issued share capital of the Company, as shown in the latest audited accounts of the Company. It replaces a similar resolution
passed previously.

The Directors believe that the limited powers provided by this resolution will maintain a degree of flexibility. Unless previously revoked or varied the disapplication
shall expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company and the date falling fifteen months after the date of the passing of
the resolution.

Resolution 8: Authority to purchase Company’s own shares
This resolution grants authority to the Company to make purchases of up to a maximum of 10% of the issued Ordinary Share capital of the Company. In certain
circumstances it may be advantageous for the Company to purchase its Ordinary Shares.

The Directors would use the share purchase authority with discretion and purchases would only be made from funds not required for other purposes and in light
of the market conditions prevailing at the time. In reaching a decision to purchase the Ordinary Shares, your Directors would take account of the Company’s
cash resources and capital, the effect of such purchase on the Company’s business, any impact on earnings per Ordinary Share or on net tangible assets per
Ordinary Share. No announcement will be made by the Company in advance of market purchases but any purchases made by the Company would be
announced by 8.30 a.m. on the business day next following the transaction.

New regulations, The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 (as amended) (the “Treasury Shares Regulations”) came into
force on 1 December 2003. The Treasury Shares Regulations give flexibility concerning what the Company can do with any of its Ordinary Shares that it may
buy back. The Company may now hold such shares “in treasury” and then sell them at a later date for cash rather than simply canceling them. The Treasury
Shares Regulations require such sales to be on a pre-emptive, pro-rata, basis to existing shareholders unless shareholders agree by special resolution to disapply
such pre-emption rights. Accordingly, in addition to giving the Directors power to allot unissued ordinary share capital on a non-pre-emptive basis, Resolution 7
will also give the Directors power to sell Ordinary Shares held in treasury on a non-pre-emptive basis, subject always to the limitations noted above.

Resolution 9: New articles of association
It is proposed in resolution 9 to adopt new articles of association (the "New Articles") in substitution for and in order to update the Company's current Articles
of Association (the "Current Articles") primarily to take account of changes in English company law brought about by the Companies Act 2006 (the "2006 Act").
The principal changes introduced in the New Articles are summarised below. Other changes, which are of minor, technical or clarifying nature and also some
more minor changes which merely reflect changes made by the 2006 Act have not been summarised below. The New Articles are available for inspection,
as noted above.

Articles which duplicate statutory provisions
a) Provisions in the Current Articles which replicate provisions contained in the 2006 Act are in the main amended (to the extent that this is not already the

case) to bring them into line with the 2006 Act. Certain examples of such provisions include provisions as to the variation of class rights, the requirement to
keep accounting records and provisions regarding the period of notice required to convene general meetings. The main changes made to reflect this
approach are detailed below.

Variation of class rights
b) The Current Articles contain provisions regarding the variation of class rights. The proceedings and specific quorum requirements for a meeting convened to

vary class rights are contained in the 2006 Act. The relevant provisions have therefore been amended in the New Articles.

Convening extraordinary and annual general meetings
c) The provisions in the Current Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the length of notice required to convene general meetings are

being amended to conform to new provisions in the 2006 Act. In particular an extraordinary general meeting to consider a special resolution can be
convened on 14 days' notice whereas previously 21 days' notice was required.

Votes of members
d) Under the 2006 Act proxies are entitled to vote on a show of hands whereas under the Current Articles proxies are only entitled to vote on a poll. The time

limits for the appointment or termination of a proxy appointment have been altered by the 2006 Act so that the articles cannot provide that they should be
received more than 48 hours before the meeting or in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after the meeting, more than 24 hours before the time
for the taking of a poll, with weekends and bank holidays being permitted to be excluded for this purpose. Multiple proxies may be appointed provided that
each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share held by the shareholder. Multiple corporate representatives may be appointed.
The chairman of a general meeting no longer has a casting vote. The New Articles reflect all of these new provisions.



Majestic Wine PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
52

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Age of directors on appointment
e) The Current Articles contain a provision requiring a director's age to be disclosed if he has attained the age of 70 years or more in the notice convening a

meeting at which the director is proposed to be elected or re-elected. Such provision could now fall foul of the Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006
and so has been removed from the New Articles.

Conflicts of interest
f) The 2006 Act sets out directors' general duties which largely codify the existing law but with some changes. Under the 2006 Act, from 1 October 2008

a director must avoid a situation where he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with the company's interests.
The requirement is very broad and could apply, for example, if a director becomes a director of another company or a trustee of another organisation.
The 2006 Act allows directors of public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts, where appropriate, where the articles of association contain
a provision to this effect. The 2006 Act also allows the articles of association to contain other provisions for dealing with directors' conflicts of interest to
avoid a breach of duty. The New Articles give the directors authority to approve such situations and to include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest
to be dealt with in a similar way to the current position.

There are safeguards which will apply when directors decide whether to authorise a conflict or potential conflict. First, only directors who have no interest
in the matter being considered will be able to take the relevant decision, and secondly, in taking the decision the directors must act in a way they consider,
in good faith, will be most likely to promote the company's success. The directors will be able to impose limits or conditions when giving authorisation if
they think this is appropriate.

It is also proposed that the New Articles should contain provisions relating to confidential information, attendance at board meetings and availability of
board papers to protect a director being in breach of duty if a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest arises. These provisions will only apply where
the position giving rise to the potential conflict has previously been authorised by the directors.

Notice of board meetings
g) Under the Current Articles, when a director is abroad he can request that notice of directors' meetings are sent to him at a specified address and if he does

not do so he is not entitled to receive notice while he is away. This provision has been removed, as modern communications mean that there may be no
particular obstacle to giving notice to a director who is abroad. It has been replaced with a more general provision that a director is treated as having
waived his entitlement to notice, unless he supplies the Company with the information necessary to ensure that he receives notice of a meeting before it
takes place.

Records to be kept
h) The provision in the Current Articles requiring the Board to keep accounting records has been removed as this requirement is contained in the 2006 Act.

Distribution of assets otherwise than in cash
i) The Current Articles contain provisions dealing with the distribution of assets in kind in the event of the Company going into liquidation. These provisions

have been removed in the New Articles on the grounds that a provision about the powers of liquidators is a matter for insolvency law rather than the articles
and that the Insolvency Act 1986 confers powers on the liquidator which would enable it to do what is envisaged by the Current Articles.

Electronic and web communications
j) Provisions of the 2006 Act which came into force in January 2007 enable companies to communicate with members by electronic and/or website

communications. The New Articles continue to allow communications to members in electronic form and, in addition, they also permit the Company to
take advantage of the new provisions relating to website communications. Before the Company can communicate with a member by means of website
communication, the relevant member must be asked individually by the Company to agree that the Company may send or supply documents or
information to him by means of a website, and the Company must either have received a positive response or have received no response within the period
of 28 days beginning with the date on which the request was sent. The Company will notify the member (either in writing, or by other permitted means)
when a relevant document or information is placed on the website and a member can always request a hard copy version of the document or information.

Directors’ indemnities and loans to fund expenditure
k) The 2006 Act has in some areas widened the scope of the powers of a company to indemnify directors and to fund expenditure incurred in connection with

certain actions against directors. In particular, a company that is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme can now indemnify a director against liability
incurred in connection with the company's activities as trustee of the scheme. In addition, the existing exemption allowing a company to provide money for
the purpose of funding a director's defence in court proceedings now expressly covers regulatory proceedings and applies to associated companies.

General
l) Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer language into the New Articles and in some areas to conform the language of the New Articles.
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Majestic Wine PLC
Form of Proxy

For use at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 7 August 2009

I/We (name(s) in full)

of (a)

holder(s) of Ordinary Shares in Majestic Wine PLC hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy and to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Majestic Wine PLC to be held on 7 August 2009 at 11.30 am and at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate with an X how you wish your votes to be cast in the space below in respect of the resolution to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
If no specific direction is given the proxy will vote or abstain at his/her discretion.

Resolutions For Against Withheld*

1. Adoption of accounts

2. Declaration of a final dividend

3. Re-election of Helen Keays

4. Re-election of Justin Apthorp

5. Re-appointment of Auditors

6. Directors’ authority to allot securities

7. Disapplication of pre-emption rights

8. Authority to purchase own shares

9. Adoption of new articles of association

*The “Withheld” option is provided to enable you to instruct your proxy not to vote on any particular resolution. It should be noted that a vote witheld in this way
is not a “vote” in law and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of the votes “For” and “Against” a resolution.

(Note 2)

Number of shares Class of shares

Signature(s) Date

This proxy appointment is one of a multiple proxy appointment (Note 3)

Notes:
1. A member who is entitled to attend, speak and vote may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting

in order to represent you. A member wishing to appoint someone other than the Chairman of the meeting as his or her proxy should insert that person's name (IN BLOCK CAPITALS) in the space
provided in substitution for the reference to "the Chairman of the Meeting" (and delete that reference) and initial the alteration.

2. If the proxy is being appointed for less than your full entitlement, please indicate above your signature the number and class of shares in relation to which that person is authorised to act as your
proxy. If left blank, your proxy will be deemed to be authorised in respect of your full voting entitlement.

3. A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares (so a member must have more than one share to be able to appoint
more than one proxy). A separate form of proxy must be deposited for each proxy appointed. Further copies of this form may be obtained by contacting Capita Registrars between 9.00am and
5.00pm (London time) Monday to Friday on 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras) from within the UK or +44 20 8639 3399 if calling from outside the UK or you may
photocopy this form. If you appoint multiple proxies, please indicate above your signature, the number and class of shares in relation to which the person named on this form is authorised to act as
your proxy. Please also indicate by ticking the box provided if the proxy instruction is one of multiple instructions being given. All forms must be signed and returned to Capita Registrars, the
Company's Registrars, together in the same envelope. Where multiple proxies are appointed, failure to specify the number of shares to which this proxy appointment relates or specifying a number
which exceeds the number held by the member when totalled with the number specified on other proxy appointments by the same member, will render all the appointments invalid.

4. To be valid, this form of proxy together with any power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority must be received by post or
(during normal business hours only) by hand at the offices of the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars, The Proxy Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU by
11.30 am. on 5 August 2009 (or if the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting).

5. The appointment of a proxy will not preclude a member from attending the meeting and voting in person but if he or she does so this proxy appointment will terminate automatically.
6. An individual member or his attorney must sign this form. If the member is a company, this form of proxy must be executed under the common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer or attorney

of the company.
7. In the case of joint holders, the proxy appointment of the most senior holder will be accepted to the exclusion of any appointments by the other joint holders. For this purpose, seniority is

determined by the order in which the names are stated in the register of members of the Company in respect of the joint holding.
8. A member wishing to change his or her proxy instructions should submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out, and by the time limit specified, in note 4. Any changes to proxy

instructions received after that time will be disregarded. A member who requires another form should contact Capita Registrars whose contact details are provided in note 3. Subject to note 3,
if a member submits more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the time limit in note 4 will take precedence.

9. A member wishing to revoke his or her proxy appointment should do so by sending a notice to that effect to the Company's registrars to the address set out in note 4. The revocation notice must be
received by the Company's registrars by the time limit set out in note 4. Any revocation notice received after this time will not have effect.

�
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Property
We are delighted to have opened our 150th 
store on Leith Walk, Edinburgh on 15 June 2009. 
This represents a significant milestone on the way 
to our target of 250 stores.

South and West
Barnstaple
Bath
Bristol Bath Road
Bristol Filton
Bristol Westbury-on-Trym
Cheltenham
Chichester
Chippenham
Cirencester
Dorchester
Exeter
Gloucester
Marlborough
Newbury
Poole
Salisbury
Southampton
Swindon
Taunton
Winchester

South East
Amersham
Aylesbury
Berkhamsted
Bishops Stortford
Brighton & Hove
Camberley
Chelmsford
East Grinstead
Farnham
Guildford
Haslemere
High Wycombe
Horsham
Leatherhead
Maidenhead
Maidstone
Reading
Reigate
Sevenoaks
Sonning
St. Albans
Stevenage
Sunningdale
Tunbridge Wells
Woking
Wokingham

London and Inside M25
Battersea
Belgravia
Brentford Lock
Bromley
Bushey
Chalk Farm
Cheam
Chislehurst
City
Clapham
Covent Garden
Croydon
Docklands
Dulwich
Ealing
East Molesey
Enfield
Epsom
Finchley
Fulham
Gidea Park
Greenwich
Islington
Kingston
Marylebone
Mayfair
Muswell Hill
New Barnet
Notting Hill Gate
Putney
Richmond
Roehampton
Ruislip
Sanderstead
Shepherds Bush
St. John’s Wood
Surbiton
Twickenham
Uxbridge
Vauxhall
Vinopolis
Wanstead
Weybridge
Wimbledon

East
Cambridge
Colchester
Ipswich
Norwich
Peterborough
Southend-on-Sea

Midlands
Banbury
Bicester
Birmingham Hagley Road
Birmingham Shirley
Derby
Hereford
Leamington Spa
Leicester
Mere Green Sutton Coldfield
Milton Keynes
Northampton
Nottingham
Oxford Cowley Road
Oxford Summertown
Shrewsbury
Stratford-upon-Avon
Stourbridge
Stow-on-the-Wold
Wolverhampton
Worcester

North
Beverley
Birkdale Southport
Carlisle
Chester
Darlington
Harrogate
Huddersfield
Kendal
Leeds Central
Leeds Chapel Allerton
Lincoln
Macclesfield
Manchester
Newcastle
Preston
Sheffield
Stockport
Warrington
Wilmslow
York

Scotland
Aberdeen
Ayr
Edinburgh Causewayside
Edinburgh Comiston Road
Edinburgh Leith Walk
Glasgow Bearsden
Glasgow West End
Glasgow Giffnock
Inverness
Perth
Stirling

Wales
Bangor
Cardiff
Swansea

France
Calais
Coquelles
Cherbourg
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Above
Our 150th store was opened 
on 15th June 2009 on Leith Walk 
in Edinburgh.
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